
 

Agenda - Y Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a 

Chwaraeon 

Lleoliad: 

Ystafell Bwyllgora 3 - Senedd 

Dyddiad: Dydd Iau, 15 Mehefin 2017 

Rhag-gyfarfod Aelodau: 09.15 

Amser: 09.30

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a: 

Sian Thomas 

Clerc y Pwyllgor 

0300 200 6291  

SeneddIechyd@cynulliad.cymru

Rhag-gyfarfod anffurfiol (09.15 - 09.30)  

 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau 

   

2 Ymchwiliad i unigrwydd ac unigedd – sesiwn dystiolaeth 5 – Coleg 

Brenhinol y Seiciatryddion 

(09.30 - 10.15) (Tudalennau 1 - 32)  

Dr Victor Aziz, Coleg Brenhinol y Seiciatryddion 

 

Egwyl (10.15 - 10.20)  

 

3 Ymchwiliad i unigrwydd ac unigedd – sesiwn dystiolaeth 6 – 

Conffederasiwn GIG Cymru 

(10.20 - 11.05) (Tudalennau 33 - 39)  

Julie Denley, Cyfarwyddwr Dros Dro, Iechyd Meddwl ac Anableddau Dysgu, Bwrdd 

Iechyd Prifysgol Hywel Dda  

Liz Carroll, Pennaeth Nyrsio, Iechyd Meddwl ac Anableddau Dysgu, Bwrdd Iechyd 

Prifysgol Hywel Dda 

Cheryl Williams, Tîm Iechyd y Cyhoedd Lleol Caerdydd a’r Fro, Bwrdd Iechyd 

Prifysgol Caerdydd a’r Fro 

Tanya Strange, Nyrs Ranbarthol, Gofal Sylfaenol a Rhwydweithiau, Bwrdd Iechyd 

Prifysgol Aneurin Bevan 

 

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



Egwyl (11.05 - 11.15)  

 

4 Ymchwiliad i unigrwydd ac unigedd – sesiwn dystiolaeth 7 – 

Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru a Chymdeithas y 

Cyfarwyddwyr Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol (ADSS) 

(11.15 - 12.00) (Tudalennau 40 - 45)  

Stewart Blythe, Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru 

Dave Street, Llywydd, Cymdeithas y Cyfarwyddwyr Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 
 

Egwyl cinio (12.00 - 12.45)  

 

5 Ymchwiliad i unigrwydd ac unigedd – sesiwn dystiolaeth 8 – Y 

Groes Goch Brydeinig yng Nghymru 

(12.45 - 13.15) (Tudalennau 46 - 51)  

Chris Hopkins, Cyfarwyddwr Cymru, y Groes Goch Brydeinig 

Dave Worrall, Rheolwr Rhaglen, y Groes Goch Brydeinig 

Paul Gerrard, Cyfarwyddwr Polisi’r Grŵp, y Co-op 

 

Egwyl (13.15 - 13.20)  

 

6 Ymchwiliad i unigrwydd ac unigedd – sesiwn dystiolaeth 9 – 

Gwasanaethau Gwirfoddol Morgannwg (GVS) 

(13.20 - 13.50) (Tudalennau 52 - 55)  

Rachel Connor, Prif Weithredwr, Gwasanaethau Gwirfoddol Morgannwg 

Linda Pritchard, Hwylusydd Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol, Gwasanaethau 

Gwirfoddol Morgannwg 

 

Egwyl (13.50 - 13.55)  

 



7 Ymchwiliad i unigrwydd ac unigedd – sesiwn dystiolaeth 10 - 

Men’s Sheds Cymru 

(13.55 - 14.25)   

Rhodri Walters, Men Sheds Cymru 

 

8 Papurau i’w nodi 

   

Ymchwiliad i barodrwydd ar gyfer y gaeaf 2016/17 – gohebiaeth gan y Coleg 

Brenhinol Meddygaeth Frys 

 (Tudalen 56)  

 

Ymchwiliad i barodrwydd ar gyfer y gaeaf 2016/17 – gohebiaeth gan Goleg 

Brenhinol y Meddygon 

 (Tudalennau 57 - 71)  

 

Ymchwiliad i ofal sylfaenol – gwybodaeth ychwanegol gan Fwrdd Iechyd Lleol 

Aneurin Bevan am Gyllid Datblygu Clystyrau 

 (Tudalennau 72 - 75)  

 

Ymchwiliad i barodrwydd ar gyfer y gaeaf 2016/17 – llythyr at Ysgrifennydd y 

Cabinet dros Iechyd, Llesiant a Chwaraeon 

 (Tudalennau 76 - 77)  

 

Ymchwiliad i ofal sylfaenol – gwybodaeth ychwanegol gan Fwrdd Iechyd Lleol 

Prifysgol Abertawe Bro Morgannwg am Gyllid Datblygu Clystyrau 

 (Tudalennau 78 - 81)  

 

9 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y 

cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod 

   



10 Ymchwiliad i unigrwydd ac unigedd – trafod y dystiolaeth. 

(14.25 - 14.40)   



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



 

 
                                                                                                

 
 
 

DATE: 10 March 2017 

RESPONSE OF: THE ROYAL COLLEGE OF PSYCHIATRISTS in 
WALES 

RESPONSE TO: HSCS Committee, Isolation and Loneliness 

 
  
The Royal College of Psychiatrists is the professional medical body 
responsible for supporting psychiatrists throughout their careers, from 
training through to retirement, and in setting and raising standards of 
psychiatry in the United Kingdom. 
 
The College aims to improve the outcomes of people with mental illness, 
and the mental health of individuals, their families and communities. In 
order to achieve this, the College sets standards and promotes excellence 
in psychiatry; leads, represents and supports psychiatrists; improves the 
scientific understanding of mental illness; works with and advocates for 
patients, carers and their organisations. Nationally and internationally, the 
College has a vital role in representing the expertise of the psychiatric 
profession to governments and other agencies. 
 
RCPsych in Wales is an arm of the Central College, representing over 550 
Consultant and Trainee Psychiatrists working in Wales.  
 
 
For further information please contact: 
 
Ms Manel Tippett 
Policy Administrator 
RCPsych in Wales 
Baltic House 
Mount Stuart Square 
Cardiff Bay, CF10 5FH 
 

 
 
www.rcpsych.ac.uk 
@RCPsychWales 
 

Royal College of Psychiatrists 
Consultation Response 
 

Y Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon 
Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 
HSCS(5)-18-17 Papur 1 / Paper 1 

Tudalen y pecyn 27

http://www.rcpsych.ac.uk/


Health, Social Care and Sports Committee Inquiry into Loneliness 
and Isolation 

 
1. The Royal College of Psychiatrists in Wales is pleased to respond to the 

Committee’s inquiry into Isolation and Loneliness. Loneliness can occur 
at any time in our lives, regardless of how many people are around us. 
It is an unwelcome feeling of a lack of, or loss of, companionship. 
Loneliness is more common amongst older people and more common 
again for the very elderly (age 80+) so the Committee is correct to focus 
its inquiry on the elderly. However, it should also be noted that 
loneliness and isolation can affect people at other life stages and 
situations. Loneliness can be a contributing factor to a range of mental 
health conditions including depression and can be a risk of suicide. 

 
2. Loneliness and isolation are two very separate things.  ‘Loneliness’ is the 

overwhelming sense of being on one’s own. It is associated with 
unpleasant emotional distress that arises when we feel estranged from 
or rejected by others, or a lack of emotional intimacy and interaction 
with society. This may lead to frustration, unhappiness and sometimes 
depression.  ‘Isolation’ is the removal or absence of physical and social 
relationships and contacts. Some people express loneliness even when 
they are not isolated. This can be because the relationships they have 
with the people they see do not provide the emotional support that they 
need. Other people may have only a few contacts but are not lonely. 

 
3. Loneliness is subjective because experiences are very personal and 

differ from individual to individual. There are different types of loneliness 
such as emotional loneliness and social loneliness. Emotional loneliness 
is the absence of a significant other who you are emotionally attached 
to and social loneliness is the lack of a wider social network of friends.  

 
4. The characteristics and the physical and mental health of the individual 

tend to influence whether an individual is likely to become lonely or not 
and their response to it. Expectations and attitudes are crucially 
important. People who expect to be surrounded by emotionally 
supportive family and friends and then do not receive this support are 
likely to report that they are lonely.  

 
The evidence for the scale and causes of the problems of isolation 
and loneliness including factors such as housing, transport, 
community facilities, health and wellbeing services 
 
5. A number of research studies conducted at different times suggest 5% 

to 16% of the older population is lonely. The probable estimate is that 
about 10% of the general population aged over 65 in the UK is lonely 
and this figure is even higher in those aged 80+. It is difficult to say if 
the proportion is increasing but we know that the numbers are as our 
elderly population continues to grow. It is also important to bear in mind 
that the percentage of older women living alone exceeds that of men in 
each age group and women become progressively more likely than men 
to live alone with age. 

Tudalen y pecyn 28



 
6. The number of isolated older people at risk of loneliness is likely to be 

much larger. 12% of older people say they feel trapped in their homes 
and 6% report that they leave their homes once a week.  

 
7. There are a variety of causes of loneliness including social isolation, the 

loss of a loved one, physical disability or poor health, low self-esteem, 
and depression. It is important that there are many risk factors 
including: 

 
• Poorly managed transitions tend to occur in older people and 

can trigger loneliness;  
 

• Gay men and lesbians are at greater risk of becoming lonely and 
isolated as they are more likely to live alone and have less 
contact with family;  
 

• Ethnic minority older people have higher rates of loneliness than 
for the rest of the population;  
 

• Poor health reduced mobility cognitive and sensory impairment 
including dual sensory impairment increase the older person’s 
chance of being lonely; 
 

• Depression could have a negative impact negatively affecting 
people’s perception of the social resources available to them; 
 

• Geography also has an influence if they are in deprived urban 
areas or in area in which crime is an issue.  

 
 
The impact of loneliness and isolation on older people in terms of 
physical and mental health and wellbeing, including whether they 
disproportionately affect certain groups such as those with 
dementia 
 
8. Loneliness is not only caused by poor mental and physical health; the 

reverse is often true where loneliness can have an adverse effect on a 
person’s psychological and physical state of being. Loneliness has been 
shown to cause increased risk of heart disease (raised blood pressure), 
disruptive sleep, which is associated with daytime fatigue making a 
person more prone to viruses and infections. Lonely people can be less 
attentive to what other people are saying and this can have a negative 
impact on relationships and this reduction in social engagement will 
negatively impact on mood and cognition.  

 
9. Our main concern is the mental health need brought about by loneliness 

and the difficulty in treating those who are isolated. Loneliness is one of 
the three main factors leading to depression (including poverty and 
bereavement). Depression impacts greatly on a person’s wellbeing and 
quality of life. It is common amongst older people and the prevalence of 
depressive symptoms increase with age (Singh, A). Depression affects 

Tudalen y pecyn 29



8 – 12% of the general population but this is much higher in the elderly 
population at 20%.  

 
10.Depression is not an inevitability of old age. Those that ‘age well’ are 

often those with religious beliefs, good social relationships, perceived 
good health, and socioeconomic status.  

 
 
The impact of loneliness and isolation on the use of public 
services, particularly health and social care 
 
11.Loneliness and isolation can result in a deterioration of physical and 

mental health. This is noticeable in the elderly where levels of loneliness 
are particularly high and where age plays a natural part on a person’s 
physical health. However, isolation and loneliness can affect all ages and 
the signs and symptoms may not be easily identifiable in younger people 
as they are often in natural social networks such as schools or in 
employment. Completed and attempted suicides in middle-aged men 
have increased significantly in recent years and reported incidence of 
self-harm in the younger population have also increased significantly. 
Although these rises are due to a number of factors including loneliness 
and social isolation, we do know that people are not receiving the help 
that they need either because they are less likely to seek help or because 
they are unable to access basic services.   

 
Suicide 
 
12.Suicide can occur at any age. In the UK, the risk is highest amongst men 

aged 35-55 and then amongst people over 75. Worldwide, the over 75’s 
are the group with the highest suicide rates yet suicide prevention 
initiatives often overlook this group. Loneliness can be a significant 
contributing factor. Talk to Me 2, the suicide and self-harm strategy for 
Wales sets out a number of measures to combat loneliness. We would 
advise considering that Talk to Me 2 could be strengthened by 
emphasising the need for local ownership of implementation. In other 
evidence, Samaritans Cymru recommend loneliness mapping as a 
strategy to identify men at risk. We feel that this may merit further 
investigation. 

 
Alcohol 
 
13.The very psychosocial factors linked to loneliness amongst older people 

(including bereavement, retirement, boredom, isolation, homelessness 
and depression) are all associated with higher rates of alcohol use. 
Because of physiological changes associated with ageing, older people 
are at increased risk of adverse physical effects of substance misuse, 
even at relatively modest levels of intake. Psychiatric comorbidities of 
substance misuse are sadly common in older people including 
intoxication and delirium, withdrawal syndromes, anxiety, depression 
and cognitive changes/dementia but this problem often is ignored or left 
unnoticed.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 30



14.The overall figure of elderly people being treated for substance misuse 
problems is rising, including for addiction to alcohol.  Because there are 
no services available in Wales to deal with the specific needs of this age 
group, the numbers of people being seen by CDATs may be tip of the 
iceberg. This is very worrying. We are not aware of the scale of the 
problem so it is likely that a large group of elderly people’s needs are 
not being met and that their conditions are worsening. We know that 
how the body reacts to alcohol changes as you get older. Older people 
who consume too much alcohol are at greater risk than the general 
population, primarily due to risks associated with old age, such as frailty, 
cognitive impairment, and co morbidities. The interaction alcohol can 
have with some prescribed medication is also cause for concern.  

 
Ways of addressing problems of loneliness and isolation in older 
people including interventions to specifically address the problems 
and other projects with wider aims. Evidence for what works and 
the outcomes for older people in terms of health and wellbeing 
 
15.Loneliness is a sign that something needs to change, so it is important 

that the person plans ahead so that they are active and busy. There are 
simple steps that an individual can take to combat loneliness, such as 
getting involved in social activities, discovering a hobby, helping others 
who are lonely, keeping active – or if this is not possible, stimulate the 
brain and imagination by reading and writing. 

 
16.There are however fundamental issues that are much more difficult for 

individuals to overcome. The poor provision of public transport links 
particularly in rural areas result in people being isolated. Many elderly 
people stay at home because there are no or very few public toilets. We 
know that the Public Health Wales Bill once passed will address the issue 
of public toilets and we believe that the provision of Health Impact 
Assessments is a good lever to ensure that any decisions being made 
about transport and regeneration takes into account it’s on the health of 
elderly people. We had called specifically for the reintroduction of this 
provision in the Bill when it was introduced at the last Assembly. 

 
17.Organisations like Age Connects Wales, Age Cymru and many others, 

who deliver essential befriending services that so many older people rely 
on. It is vital that the third sector is fully engaged and supported to 
provide their expertise and knowledge, particularly as they have become 
a lifeline to many people. 

 
18.Older people who are socially disconnected and feel lonely rate their 

physical health lower than that of others so are more likely to visit their 
GP to make use of their services. One study suggested that loneliness is 
a predictive use of Accident and Emergency services independent of 
chronic illness. There is an opportunity for those working in primary care 
and emergency departments to spot signs of loneliness and be able to 
provide signposting to relevant services.  

 
19.There are ways of addressing problems of loneliness and isolation in 

older people. Below are a number of examples.  

Tudalen y pecyn 31



 
• Understanding the nature of the person’s loneliness and 

developing a personalised response and supporting them to 
access appropriate services is key.  

• Develop services to support them to maintain existing 
relationships.  

• Develop new connections and change their thinking about their 
social connections with a menu of such approaches.  

• Group based services are generally better.  
• Concentrate on existing clear and positive relationships. Having 

friends is more important than frequency of seeing them.  
• Support older people to sustain these relationships and build up 

a reserve of social support and psychological support resources 
to compensate when they are unable to do things.  

• Identifying people at risk of loneliness can be difficult (not all 
are socially isolated and there is the social stigma associated 
with loneliness)  but targeting those disproportionately affected 
by loneliness – lower socio-economic groups, the widowed, the 
physically isolated, people who have recently stopped driving, 
those with sensory impairment and the  very old – has proven 
most effective. 

• Support older people through difficult transitions such as 
bereavement.  

• Transport and urban planning which will affect the person’s 
ability to participate socially.  

• Interventions not specifically targeted at combating isolation and 
loneliness can still have a tangible positive effect on people who 
are lonely. 

• Intergenerational contact is probably more effective in 
combating loneliness than contact with one’s own age group. 

• Interventions to elevate loneliness can be signposting service or 
providing individual support for the individual such as 
befriending, mentoring, buddying, way-finders. 

• Group interventions such as day centres, social groups, 
community arts, local history groups, health promotion , walking 
groups, healthy eating groups and volunteering work, possibly 
more use of technology.  

 
 
Professor Keith Lloyd 
Chair, RCPsych in Wales 
 
Dr Victor Aziz 
Chair, Old Age Faculty, RCPsych in Wales 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 32



Y Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon 

Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 

HSCS(5)-18-17 Papur 2 / Paper 2 
 

 

Introduction 
1. We welcome the opportunity to contribute to the Health, Social Care and Sport Committee Inquiry 

into loneliness and isolation. The Welsh NHS Confederation represents the seven Health Boards 
and three NHS Trusts in Wales. The Welsh NHS Confederation supports our members to improve 
health and well-being by working with them to deliver high standards of care for patients and best 
value for taxpayers’ money. We act as a driving force for positive change through strong 
representation and our policy, influencing and engagement work. 

 
 

Overview 
2. Loneliness and isolation is a significant and growing issue amongst our population. A number of 

Health Board’s population needs assessment have highlighted tackling social isolation and 
loneliness across their populations, but particularly for older people, as a key priority. Its impacts 
are devastating and costly, with comparable health impacts to smoking and obesity. 
 

3. Loneliness and isolation appear to increase with age, and among those with long-term health 
problems. The causes of loneliness are not just physical isolation and lack of companionship, but 
also sometimes the lack of a useful role in society. There are many different factors that affect 
loneliness and isolation, including health, mobility, housing, transport and income and the NHS is 
working collaboratively with a range of statutory and voluntary sector partners to address these 
factors.  

 
4. The effects of social and emotional loneliness on physical and mental health and well-being are 

extensive. Evidence suggests that loneliness is associated with increased risk of dying, sleep 
problems, abnormal stress response, high blood pressure, poor quality of life, frailty, increased 
risk of heart attack and stroke, depression and increased risk of dementia.  

 
5. Tackling loneliness and isolation is inherently preventative in terms of delaying or avoiding the 

need for more intensive support. Loneliness is ‘amenable’ to a number of effective interventions, 
particularly befriending. Practical, flexible and low-level assistance is often most effective and 
individually tailored solutions can yield the best results. Effective action to combat loneliness is 
best delivered in partnership and it is believed that many GP consultations may have loneliness at 
the root of the problem.i However many health and well-being services do not tend to identify 
those who may be at risk of loneliness and social isolation because they are not asking people if 
they are lonely. However, as our response will highlight, the NHS across Wales has introduced a 
number of initiatives and projects to combat loneliness and isolation, including the “Ffrind i mi/ 
Friend of mine” initiative in Aneurin Bevan University Health Board (UHB). 

 
 
 

 The Welsh NHS Confederation response to the Health, Social Care and Sport Committee inquiry into 
loneliness and isolation. 

Contact Nesta Lloyd – Jones, Policy and Public Affairs Manager, the Welsh NHS Confederation. 
XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX Tel:  XXXXXXXXX 
 

Date:  9 March 2017 

Tudalen y pecyn 33

Eitem 3



2 
 

 
 

Terms of Reference 
The evidence for the scale and causes of the problems of isolation and loneliness, including factors 
such as housing, transport, community facilities, health and wellbeing services; 
6. It is important to recognise that although loneliness and isolation are two different concepts, they 

both relate to people’s sense of connection with others. As Age UK state “Isolation refers to 
separation from social or familial contact, community involvement, or access to services. 
Loneliness, by contrast, can be understood as an individual’s personal, subjective sense of lacking 
these things to the extent that they are wanted or needed.”ii We recognise that it is possible to be 
isolated without being lonely, and to be lonely without being isolated. The issues of isolation and 
loneliness can affect people at any age and is a significant and growing issue.  
 

7. Loneliness should be viewed as a risk factor to an individual’s health and well-being. There is a 
wealth of evidence that indicate the scale and causes of the problems associated with social 
isolation and loneliness. According to Age Cymru, over 75,000 people aged over 65 in Wales (over 
12% of the Welsh population who are over 65 years old) say they are often or always lonelyiii and 
46% say the TV or their pet is their main form of company. 12% of older adults feel trapped in 
their own home, and 9% feel cut off from society.iv 

 
8. A Local Government Association report in England, Combating Loneliness,v published in January 

2013 lists a number of potential risk factors for loneliness, including: 

 Living alone. More than 75% of women and a third of men over the age of 65 live alone in 
Wales;vi 

 Poor health; 

 Being aged 80+; 

 Loss of friends; 

 Having no access to a car/ never using public transport. In Wales, two-thirds of single 
pensioners have no car, and so reliable local transport is extremely important as people get 
older;vii 

 Living in rented accommodation; 

 Living on low income or on benefits as main income; and 

 Having no access to a telephone. 
 

9. Other risk factors that been identified include; 

 Single/Divorced/Widowed; 

 Living in a care home; 

 Bereavement; 

 Carer; 

 Retired; 

 Ethnicity (1st generation); 

 Gay/Lesbian; 

 Dementia; 

 Sensory impairment/s; 

 Living in high crime/high deprivation areas; 

 Veterans; ex-service personal have reported that they have issues integrating back into civilian 
life; 

 Living in sheltered accommodation; and 

 Nursing and residential homes where older people feel they have no sense of purpose. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 34



3 
 

10. With the population ageing, loneliness is going to become more of a problem over time and all 
public services will need to identify and support people who are lonely and isolated. At the 
moment health and well-being services do not tend to identify those who may be at risk of 
loneliness and social isolation because they are not asking people if they are lonely. However, 
under the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 Health Boards are now under a duty to 
carry out population needs assessments and publish them and as a result many have recognised 
that tackling social isolation and loneliness is a key priority.  

 
 
The impact of loneliness and isolation on older people in terms of physical and mental health and 
wellbeing, including whether they disproportionately affect certain groups such as those with 
dementia;  
11. According to the Ageing Well in Wales Programme, loneliness and isolation can have serious 

impacts upon the health and well-being of older people in Wales.viii Loneliness and isolation has 
links to poor mental and physical health and the adverse effects includes;  

 Increased risk of dying, loneliness increases the likelihood of mortality by 26%;ix   

 Sleeping problems; 

 Poor quality of life; 

 Frailty; 

 Increased risk of coronary heart disease and stroke; 

 More prone to depression; 

 Increased risk of dementia; 

 Increases the risk of high blood pressure; 

 Higher risk of the onset of disability; 

 Abnormal stress response; 

 Poor sleep; 

 Cognitive decline; and 

 Increased feelings of fear, abandonment, anxiety, inadequacy, desperation, depression, 
stress, aggression, suicidal thoughts and vulnerability. 

 
12. Age UKx reports that loneliness can be as harmful to our health as smoking 15 cigarettes a day, 

and people with a high degree of loneliness are twice as likely to develop Alzheimer’s as people 
with a low degree of loneliness. The Alzheimer’s Society has identified that loneliness and isolation 
is a problem for lots of older people, but it is particularly difficult if people are also struggling with 
dementia. In fact, people with dementia tend to be lonelier than the population as a whole and a 
survey by the Alzheimer’s Society in 2013xi found 38% of people with dementia felt lonely. One of 
the reasons dementia could be compounding loneliness is because people don’t remember that 
someone has been to see them. The nature of dementia makes loneliness worse, rather than 
loneliness causing dementia, although there is evidencexii which suggests that the risk of 
Alzheimer’s disease more than doubles in older people experiencing loneliness.  
 
 

The impact of loneliness and isolation on the use of public services, particularly health and social 
care; 
13. The impact of loneliness and isolation on the use of public services is not fully understood and 

service providers do not routinely assess this presently. There needs to be a better understanding 
across public services on the impact of social isolation and loneliness on an individual’s health and 
well-being. We would recommend that there needs to be a recognised measuring tool to identify 
those who are, or who are at risk, of loneliness and isolation to better understand the impact of 
loneliness and isolation on public services.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 35



4 
 

14. Age UK’s evidence review in 2010xiii found that lonely people have more likely to use public 
services, particularly social care and health, than other people. Lonely individuals are more likely 
to: 

 Visit their GP, have higher use of medication, higher incidence of falls and increased risk 
factors for long term care; 

 Undergo early entry into residential or nursing care; and 

 Use accident and emergency services independent of chronic illness. 
 

15. Discussions with primary care teams, including doctors, nurses, ward staff, pharmacists and social 
workers, have identified that there may be many people who access services who may have 
loneliness ‘at the root’ of attendance. There is a real risk that people are given prescriptions for 
antidepressants (‘over medicated’) due to the lack of time GP’s have to thoroughly explore the 
wider determinants of health. GP’s recognise that the model currently used by many GP practices 
is not necessarily providing the most appropriate service for the patient.  
 

16. There are many other options available within communities to help with lower level medical 
complaints, to provide support and advice to citizens before they develop a problem, and this 
does not require the intervention of a GP or nurse. Social support to communities and 
strengthening communities is central to this, including social prescribing. There is a need to focus 
on those individuals within our communities who at risk, giving them the support that they need 
to improve their health and well-being rather than ‘pick them up’ in a health setting once they 
become unwell.  
 

17. While many people who are lonely or isolated visit health or social care services, research has 
highlighted that being isolated can impact upon older people’s ability to access services, which 
can then impact upon their health and well-being. In the Older People’s Commissioner for Wales’ 
research,xiv older people reported that barriers to them accessing healthcare included the 
following: difficulty with GP booking systems (needing to keep calling due to busy phone lines to 
get an appointment); consultation processes (phone consultation rather than face-to-face); 
getting to hospital or appointments due to lack of transport; services not meeting individual needs 
(e.g. cultural needs). 
 
 
Ways of addressing problems of loneliness and isolation in older people, including interventions 
to specifically address the problems and other projects with wider aims. Evidence for what 
works and the outcomes for older people in terms of health and wellbeing; 

18. The ways in which loneliness and isolation can be addressed are multi-faceted and will not be a 
‘one size fits all’ approach. Researchers agree that there is a lack of high quality, robust evidence 
around which interventions are the most effective in addressing loneliness and isolation.xvxvi 
However, research evidence has demonstrated that low-intensity support (emotional, social, 
practical and housing support) has direct and tangible effects in reducing loneliness and isolation. 
Crucially, older people need to be at the centre of decisions about what services and activities 
would benefit them the most, rather than the professionals assuming what they might need.  
 

19. Group activities in particular have been seen to be helpful in enabling people out of loneliness and 
isolation.xvii This supports the view that effective interventions are;  
a. Group interventions with an educational themes or specific support functions; 
b. Interventions that target specific groups, for example women, carers or people with health 

needs; 
c. Interventions where participants are involved in setting up and running the group (co-

production);  

Tudalen y pecyn 36



5 
 

d. Interventions developed within or run by an existing service; 
e. Interventions with a sound theoretical basis; and  
f. Interventions with a technological element, for example using video-conferencing or the 

internet.xviii 
 
20. Identifying people at risk of loneliness can be difficult, but targeting those disproportionately 

affected by loneliness – lower socio-economic, groups, the widowed, the physically isolated, 
people who have recently stopped driving, those with sensory impairment, carers who lose their 
careering role and the very old – has proven most effective. Sometimes, people will require longer 
term support such as social care, but other times they need flexible support which just provides 
that ‘little bit of help’. The ‘right kind’ of help, delivered when it is needed and appropriate can 
make a huge difference to older people, enabling them to potentially avoid the need for more 
formal support, stay living in their own homes for longer and keep their independence.xix 

 
21. The initiatives that have been introduced to support people affected by loneliness and isolation 

includes the multi-agency “Ffrind i mi” Partnership Board in Aneurin Bevan UHB. As highlighted in 
Aneurin Bevan UHB written response to the Committee’s inquiry, “Ffrind i mi/Friend of mine” is a 
partnership approach to combatting loneliness and social isolation across their communities. Led 
by Aneurin Bevan UHB, and chaired by the Vice Lord Lieutenant of Gwent, the Partnership Board 
includes a range of organisations including: the Health Board, Local Authorities, Gwent police, Age 
Cymru, 1,000 Lives (Public Health Wales NHS Trust), United Welsh, Coleg Gwent and GP/ 
Neighbourhood Care Network Leads. “Ffrind i mi” has enabled a ‘social movement’, encouraging 
statutory and voluntary partners and wider communities to think about innovative ways to 
support those at risk of loneliness and social isolation to reconnect with their community. 
Recognising their rich community assets, “Ffrind i mi” also aims to recruit as many people as 
possible as volunteers, ‘plugging the gaps’ of existing social support.  
 

22. In Cwm Taf UHB they have used the Intermediate Care Fund to work with social services, housing, 
third and independent sectors to invest in projects that benefit frail/ elderly residents (65+) and 
their family to combat loneliness and isolation. In Cardiff and Vale UHB the “Age Connects Cardiff 
& the Vale” has delivered a range of projects which have demonstrated a reduction in social 
isolation and loneliness for older people. These include the “Friendly Advantage Project”, which 
reported that of the people who said they were lonely at baseline, 84% said as a result of being 
involved in the project their social interaction and well-being had increased. The “Healthy and 
Active Partnership Programme” delivered by Age Connects reported that over a 4 month reporting 
period, 78% of clients show an improvement in their experience of loneliness. The “Senior Health 
Shop” provides older people with a place to go to meet others, gather information and take part 
in activities, and 82% of people say that attending has reduced their isolation or loneliness.  

 
23. Working in many of our communities are local area or community co-ordinators. These 

individuals, through their local contacts, often hear about or are asked to help a person who may 
be house bound or with no social contact. As example, the co-ordinator’s assistance could: 
connect the person with a health or social care professional to improve their quality of life; make 
referrals to a third sector agencies that can provide a chaperone for appointments or support to 
access shopping services; and help to make introductions with local social groups. 

 
24. Furthermore, there are a number of social prescribing projects currently active across Wales. 

Social prescribing initiatives provide new life opportunities for those who need them most; 
opportunities to form new relationships, be creative and independent while improving both 
physical and mental health. Examples include voluntary work agencies, exercise classes, self-help 
groups, book groups, social or lunch clubs and hobby clubs among others. 

Tudalen y pecyn 37



6 
 

The extent to which initiatives to combat loneliness and isolation experienced by other groups may 
also help to address these issues for older people; 
25. There needs to be a wider scoping of current initiatives and a better understanding of their 

impacts on the individuals/groups they support in order to determine transferability to other 
groups/older people. Greater evidence is required to inform effective interventions and 
treatment. It is suggested that a national measurement tool to identify use of services by those 
affected by loneliness could be very useful. 
 
 

Current policy solutions in Wales and their cost effectiveness, including the Ageing Well in Wales 
programme. The approach taken by the Welsh Government in terms of maintaining community 
infrastructure and support, and using the legislative framework created in the Fourth Assembly, e.g. 
the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 and the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) 
Act 2015.  
26. The current Wales legislative framework provides an ideal opportunity to try to address the impact 

of isolation at an early stage. The Well-Being of Future Generations Act 2015, The Social Services 
and Well-Being Act 2014 and the Ageing Well in Wales programme all provide a real opportunity 
for statutory bodies and its partners to better consider and plan for strategies that are aimed at 
combatting social isolation and loneliness.  
 

27. Within the Social Services and Well-being Act 2014 a key element is for public bodies to 
signposting people to services and support and early intervention. This provides the platform for 
being able to identify older people who may be at risk of loneliness and isolation during the needs 
assessment.  

 
28. As well as the Social Services and Well-being Act 2014 the well-being goals under the Well-being 

of Future Generations Act 2015, and public sectors responsibilities under the Corporate Health 
Standard, should provide the vehicle to driving forward initiatives that combat social isolation and 
loneliness.  Some examples include: 

 A Prosperous Wales: better use of our community assets with an increased focus on the 
recruitment of volunteers from all walks of life; 

 A Healthier Wales: There is a real opportunity to influence innovative approaches where 
people’s physical and mental well-being is maximised.  

 A Wales of Cohesive Communities: volunteering service initiatives across communities with a 
wide range of partners will direct a partnership approach to innovation that enables a prudent 
approach to community cohesion. 

29. As well as legislation, it is important that the public and communities are engaged on the health 
and well-being impacts of loneliness and social isolation. Community mobilisation is important 
and any healthcare initiatives will be readily owned by a community if the leaders, the citizens, 
and youth are fully engaged in mobilising the community, educating stakeholders, and 
implementing evidence-based interventions. Community mobilisation is a capacity building 
process through which community individuals, groups, or organisations plan, carry out and 
evaluate activities on a participatory and sustained basis to improve health and other needs on 
their own initiative or stimulated by others. Communities need to be enabled to help themselves 
and others. As well as improving well-being, this may in turn reduce reliance on public sector 
services, including the NHS. 

 
 

Conclusion 
30. As highlighted in our response loneliness and isolation are both a social and health issue. Evidence 

has demonstrated the impact loneliness and isolation has on physical and mental well-being but 

Tudalen y pecyn 38



7 
 

more needs to be done to identify individuals who are, or may be at risk of, loneliness and 
isolation. Furthermore a better understanding of the support services available at a local level 
needs to be developed to ensure this support is tailored to an individual’s needs and that people 
are engaged to enable them to access local opportunities and reconnect with their communities.  

 

i Local Government Association, January 2016. Combating loneliness: a guide for local authorities. 
ii Age UK, 2015. Loneliness and Isolation Evidence Review. 
iii Age Cymru, December 2016. No one should have no one at Christmas. http://www.ageuk.org.uk/cymru/latest-
news/no-one-should-have-no-one-at-christmas. 
iv Age UK Oxfordshire, 2012. Loneliness – the state we’re in. A report of evidence compiled for the Campaign to 
End Loneliness.  
v Local Government Association, January 2016. Combating Loneliness: A guide for local authorities.  
vi Ageing Well in Wales, Loneliness & Isolation http://www.ageingwellinwales.com/en/themes/loneliness-and-
isolation.  
vii Older People’s Commissioner for Wales, 2013. A Thousand Little Barriers.  
viii Ageing Well in Wales, Loneliness & Isolation http://www.ageingwellinwales.com/en/themes/loneliness-and-
isolation.  
ix Julianne Holt-Lunstad, 2015. Loneliness and Social Isolation as Risk Factors for Mortality: A Meta-Analytic 
Review. 
x Age UK, 2015. Loneliness and Isolation Evidence Review. 
xi Alzheimer’s Society, April 2013. Dementia 2013: The hidden voice of loneliness. 
xii A study in the Journal of the American Medical Association in 2007. 
xiii Age UK, 2015. Loneliness and Isolation Evidence Review.  
xiv Older People’s Commissioner for Wales, 2013. A Thousand Little Barriers. 
xv Gardiner C, Geldenhuys G & Gett M. 2016. Interventions to reduce social isolation and loneliness among older 
people: an integrative review.  
xvi Local Government Information Unit, 2016. Loneliness and social isolation in older people. 
xvii Age UK, 2010. Loneliness and Isolation Evidence Review.  
xviii Centre for Policy on Ageing, 2014). Loneliness - evidence of the effectiveness of interventions.  
xix Older People’s Commissioner for Wales, 2013. A Thousand Little Barriers.  

                                                           

Tudalen y pecyn 39

http://www.ageingwellinwales.com/en/themes/loneliness-and-isolation
http://www.ageingwellinwales.com/en/themes/loneliness-and-isolation
http://www.ageingwellinwales.com/en/themes/loneliness-and-isolation
http://www.ageingwellinwales.com/en/themes/loneliness-and-isolation


Y Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon 

Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 

HSCS(5)-18-17 Papur 3 / Paper 3 
 

 

 

 

 
Inquiry into Loneliness and Isolation  
 

Introduction 
 

1. The Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) is a membership organisation that 
represents all 22 local authorities in Wales, the 3 fire and rescue authorities and the 3 
national park authorities as associate members. 
 

2. The WLGA represents the interests of local government and promotes local democracy in 
Wales. Its primary purposes are to promote better local government, to promote its 
reputation and to support authorities in the development of policies and priorities which 
will improve public service and democracy. 

 
3. The Association of Directors of Social Services Cymru (ADSS Cymru) is the professional 

and strategic leadership organisation for social services in Wales and is composed of 
statutory Directors of Social Services, and the Heads of Service who support them in 
delivering social services responsibilities and accountabilities; a group of 80 or so social 
services leaders across the 22 local authorities in Wales. 

 
4. There is growing recognition that loneliness and isolation is a serious problem, with far 

reaching implications, not just for individuals, but also for wider communities. Whilst in the 
past, loneliness and isolation was sometimes viewed as a trivial matter, it is increasingly 
understood to be a serious condition which can have a significant impact on a person’s 
mental and physical health. 

 
5. The terms loneliness and social isolation are often used interchangeably, but it is possible 

for people to be isolated but not lonely and vice-versa. Loneliness is a subjective state – a 
response to people’s perceptions and feelings about their social connections and well-
being – rather than an objective state. Therefore, loneliness requires a more subtle 
response, often going beyond efforts simply to maintain number, or frequency, of social 
connections. 

 
6. Given the population predictions, where we will see large increases in the number of older 

people living alone, particular in the 85+ age range, the issue of loneliness and social 
isolation is likely to continue to be a significant issue for public services and partner 

Tudalen y pecyn 40

Eitem 4



Inquiry into Loneliness and Isolation 
  WLGA & ADSS Cymru – March 2017 

 

 2 

organisations to respond to. All of this takes place against a background of severe financial 
challenges facing public services in the delivery of services.  

 
7. A recent study featured in the BMJ (formerly the British Medical Journal) found that 

loneliness and isolation are associated with a 30 per cent higher risk of having a stroke or 
developing heart disease. The health impact of loneliness is also said to be the equivalent 
of smoking 15 cigarettes a day. This has a significant impact on public services and in 
particular on health and social care and we believe that this means that loneliness and 
isolation must be recognised as a major public health issue.  
 

Scale, Causes and Impact 
 

8. A Local Government Association report, ‘Combating Loneliness’, published in January 2013 
recognises a number of potential risk factors for loneliness, including: living alone; poor 
health; being aged 80+; loss of friends; having no access to a car/ never using public 
transport; living in rented accommodation; living on low income or on benefits as main 
income; having no access to a telephone; hearing and sight loss. Variables can include, 
but are not limited to, households that: have a head of household aged 65-74, or 75+; 
have one occupant; report various health issues including mental illness, anxiety and 
depression; do not own a car; speak to their neighbours less than once a month or never;; 
have a low annual income; require help with bin collection; have bereaved older people. 

 
9. Social isolation has been identified as an important health inequality issue. The 2010 

Marmot Review found that ‘individuals who are socially isolated are between two and five 
times more likely than those who have strong social ties to die prematurely’. The UCL 
Institute of Health Equity builds on this work. In a joint initiative with Public Health 
England, the Institute produced a practical resource summary called ‘Reducing Social 
Isolation Across the Lifecourse’. It comments that ‘social isolation is a health inequality 
issue because many of the associated risk factors are more prevalent among socially 
disadvantaged groups. Social disadvantage is linked to many of the life experiences that 
increase risk of social isolation, including poor maternal health, teenage pregnancy, 
unemployment, and illness in later life.’ 
 

10. During 2015, a group of independent researchers were asked by the Social Services 
Improvement Agency (SSIA) to find out what helps and what gets in the way of wellbeing 
for older people and those caring for them. This research looked at what the fundamental 
building blocks of a good life are, importantly in relation to loneliness and isolation they 
include: 
 Being independent: people did not want to have to rely too much on other people 

 Being connected to other people: there was huge diversity in the relationships 
that mattered to people – friendships with younger people, neighbours who ‘pass 
tomatoes over the garden fence’, shopkeepers who say ‘hello’, as well as partners, 
family and long-standing friends.  

 Being active: being able to participate in interests and pleasures which give meaning 
to life.  

 
11. The research also considered what helps or hinders older people achieving wellbeing, 

identifying the following:   

Tudalen y pecyn 41



Inquiry into Loneliness and Isolation 
  WLGA & ADSS Cymru – March 2017 

 

 3 

 Transport: over half of those spoken to still had access to a car – those in rural areas 
felt this was essential; although there were criticisms of bus services, the free bus 
pass was very popular and buses can also be key social hubs for older people.  

 Home environment: being able to remain in your own home was central to 
maintaining control for many, though upkeep, utility costs and accessibility were often 
challenging.  

 Neighbourhood: the availability of local facilities; the sense of community safety (or 
the fear of crime); and the sorts of relationships they had within the local community 
all impacted on wellbeing.  

 Money: some people reported that poverty was causing them to feel anxious and 
isolated. 

 Information Technology: Some people were using the internet to improve their 
wellbeing in a range of ways, from ordering food and other shopping to be delivered 
online; using Skype to keep in touch with dispersed family; or emailing fellow 
members of social groups. However, fear of scams was a key barrier here, along with 
knowledge, skills and confidence; cost; poor connectivity; and disability (especially 
arthritis and visual impairment). 

 
12. This research also included the production of a literature review entitled, ‘The anatomy of 

resilience: helps and hindrances as we age: A review of the literature’. This document 
identifies relevant published research evidence from Wales, the UK, and further afield. 
Important strands emerge, such as, “Social connectedness” and the importance of finding 
and building on the strengths in individuals, families and communities. How we plan for 
and cope with (or not) key life events and transitions. What assists us to seek (or stops us 
from seeking) timely advice? And what can trigger (or arrest) abrupt declines? 

 

13. It is important to appreciate that anyone can experience loneliness and/or social isolation. 
Although much social policy and practice has focused on tackling the effects of loneliness 
in later life, it is a problem that exists at all life stages. A poll for the Campaign to End 
Loneliness in 2013 found that over three quarters of GPs said they were seeing between 
one and five lonely people a day. There are key triggers that can disrupt lives and create a 
situation in which loneliness or isolation become the norm. These include becoming a new 
mum at a young age, retirement, experiencing long-term health issues or mobility 
limitations, dealing with bereavement or going through a family breakdown, such as 
divorce or separation. The relationship between loneliness and these key factors needs to 
be better understood, with attention given to the experience of loneliness in younger 
adults, those in middle age and older people. This will ensure interventions are relevant 
and appropriate to individuals at different times of life. 

 

14. One of the biggest challenges for youth services in engaging young people, for example, is 
the ‘pull’ of social media which can lead to more young people isolating themselves in 
bedrooms, which can cause a number of issues – inability to socialise and form 
relationships, depression, anxiety/agoraphobia, lack of exercise and obesity. Work 
pressures for parents can also compound this as parents are not able to spend as much 
time with their children – or, in the case of a recent Children’s Society report, ‘Troubled 
Teens: A study of the links between parenting and adolescent neglect’ many teenagers 
are left to their own devices too early at home. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 42



Inquiry into Loneliness and Isolation 
  WLGA & ADSS Cymru – March 2017 

 

 4 

Ways of Addressing Problems of Loneliness and Isolation 
 

15. Despite extensive research into the nature and scale of loneliness, there is a lack of high 
quality evidence to demonstrate the impact of different interventions to combat its effects. 
There are also differences of opinion about the relative impact of interventions that work 
at either an individual or a community level. Whilst hard cost benefit analysis of loneliness 
is still scarce, there is some data that indicates good returns on investment. Given the 
high cost of the health, social care and other services required by lonely individuals if their 
circumstances are not addressed, there is a strong case for investment in this area. 

 
16. We have seen in England more and more councils, which have responsibility for public 

health, launching new initiatives to tackle loneliness, as it becomes an increasing public 
health priority. For example, Barking and Dagenham, Havering and Waltham Forest 
councils are piloting video-calling tablets to help adults over 55 feel socially included. 
Gloucestershire has also compiled loneliness "maps" which calculate where lonely 
residents are likely to live, in order to target the right areas.  

 
17. This demonstrates the benefit of more joined up and integrated approaches to tackle 

issues such as loneliness and isolation. In terms of the Welsh Government’s agenda 
around wellbeing, the WLGA believe that the time is right for a full examination of the 
creation of a public health improvement role, located within local government. This would 
provide an opportunity for local authorities to have a significant influence and more joined 
up approach over the broader determinants of people’s health – their local environment, 
housing, transport, employment, and their social interactions – all of which are linked to 
local authorities core roles and functions and can play an important role in helping to 
reduce the impact of problems such as loneliness and isolation. 

 
18. As highlighted earlier transport can help people to stay connected; and accessible and 

affordable transport links are part of the solution to tackling social isolation, playing a vital 
role in supporting people’s wellbeing. The majority of local authorities have a budget for 
subsidising bus routes which are not commercially viable but are considered necessary 
routes. However, it is becoming increasingly difficult for local authorities to protect this 
level of subsidy during times of austerity and a number of authorities have had to look at 
reducing or in some cases ending this funding. Local authorities continue to contribute to 
the Concessionary Fares Scheme which entitles over 60s (and some other categories) to 
free bus transport, which again supports people, but this is impacted if bus routes are 
reduced due to financial constraints. Local authorities continue to look for innovative 
solutions to these problems and we have seen examples being developed, for example, 
Bwcabus in Carmarthenshire/South Ceredigion and Pembrokeshire which is multi partner 
project with a grant from EU Rural Development Fund and in Monmouthshire where the 
Council operates its own community transport company which connects outlying rural 
areas with towns in Monmouthshire. 

 

19. A key part of the Social Service and Well-being (Wales) Act is the production of regional 
population assessments. Whilst the assessments are still in development and are yet to be 
finalised the emerging findings suggest that loneliness and isolation is being recognised as 
an issue. Importantly, concerns around the impact of loneliness and isolation are not 
confined to older people and it is seen as an issue across a number of other groups, 
including: 

Tudalen y pecyn 43



Inquiry into Loneliness and Isolation 
  WLGA & ADSS Cymru – March 2017 

 

 5 

 People with a physical disability 

 People with a sensory impairment 
 Minority ethnic groups with a social care need 
 Adult mental health, specifically dementia for some regions 
 People with a learning disability 
 People with autism and the parents of children and young people with autism 

 Care leavers 
 Young carers 
 Veterans 
 Victims of physical and sexual abuse (victim isolation) 

 
20. Ways of addressing loneliness and isolation are already being implemented by authorities, 

with a number of identified services / approaches across the regions, including: 
 Day opportunities 

 Housing options 
 Community connectors 

 
21. The Social Services Improvement Agency (SSIA), Data Unit Wales and the North Wales 

Single Point of Access (SPoA) programme group, working in partnership, have developed 
the Dewis Cymru information and advice website for citizens. Dewis Cymru provides 
quality information about how people can maintain or improve their well-being, and about 
organisations which can help them. First and foremost, Dewis Cymru is intended to 
promote people’s well-being by making it easier for them to find out about how to improve 
their well-being, and the sources of advice and support which can help them, including on 
topics such as loneliness and isolation. In doing so Dewis Cymru also helps local 
authorities to comply with the duty under the Social Services and Well Being Act to 
provide information, advice and assistance. 
 

22. We have also seen the Intermediate Care Fund (ICF) being used across regions to help 
reduce the impact of loneliness and isolation. For example, in Cwm Taf the ‘Project 5 ways 
to wellbeing’ is designed to challenge the isolation and loneliness in their older person’s 
population, together with promoting independence at home. ICF funding has also been 
used to fund community connectors, community co-ordinators and community agents 
across a number of different authorities. These roles work with all partner agencies in key 
locations such as Single Points of Access, GP practices and community settings, with the 
intention of helping to reduce the impact of social isolation and loneliness, helping to 
reduce hospital admission and support hospital discharge, and promote independence and 
overall wellbeing. 

 

Current Policy Solutions / Opportunities 

23. All 22 Welsh Local Authorities have signed up to the Dublin Declaration on Age friendly 
cities and communities, making a commitment to work towards the creation of Age 
Friendly communities. Local Government has also been involved in the Ageing Well in 
Wales Programme from the beginning, with the WLGA working with the Commissioner’s 
Office in establishing the Programme, building on a similar campaign undertaken in 
England.  We are supportive of the key strands of the Programme – creating age friendly 
communities; tackling loneliness and isolation; preventing falls; developing dementia 
supportive communities; and addressing employment and skills needs for older people.  

Tudalen y pecyn 44



Inquiry into Loneliness and Isolation 
  WLGA & ADSS Cymru – March 2017 

 

 6 

Progress on these 5 areas of work will lead to measurable improvements to the quality of 
life of older people, with local authorities taking a key role in supporting this work. It will 
be important for local authorities to work closely with local communities and partner 
organisations to consider how services can be delivered in the future, during a time of 
severe public spending constraint, by doing things differently. 
 

24. Prevention has been at the heart of the Welsh Government’s legislative programme. The 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act aims to make public bodies think more 
about the long-term, work better with people and communities and each other, looking to 
prevent problems and take a more joined-up approach. The Social Services and Well-being 
(Wales) Act also has prevention as one of its key principles – the need to ensure that 
services promote the prevention of escalating need and make sure the right help is 
available at the right time. Prevention is fundamental to improving health and well-being 
and helping to reduce the increasing pressures being placed on services.  

 

25. The pressures being faced across public services have increased the importance of 
providing preventative activity and services aimed at early intervention (with the intention 
of holding off more costly and potentially intrusive interventions at a later stage). We all 
agree with the benefits of early intervention and prevention in the first case, in terms of 
better life experiences and well-being for individuals and families, as well as reduced costs 
for public services, particularly in the longer term.  

 

26. The next few years will continue to be extremely challenging, local government is facing a 
cumulative shortfall of nearly £750m by 2019-20. For Social Services alone, £92m worth of 
pressures are being faced in 2017-18. The recent Health Foundation report ‘The path to 
sustainability: Funding projections for the NHS in Wales to 2019-20 and 2030-31’, 
recognises that social care budget pressures are rising higher than the pressures in the 
NHS, as social care services are heavily concentrated on the most elderly (a group that is 
seeing the fastest population growth) and the growing proportion of the population with 
learning disabilities. The health and well-being of the population depends on far more than 
the quality of health care services. There is a need to transform health and care by 
shifting investment away from treatment and towards prevention, investing in local 
services who provide a range of preventative approaches which can delay the point at 
which an individual’s needs warrant a more intensive and costly intervention. 
 

27. Local government shares the view of the importance of preventative council services and 
appreciate these make a vital contribution to reducing pressure on other public services in 
Wales, such as the NHS. However, reduced budgets have placed increasing pressure on 
the availability of preventative services, most of which are non-statutory. While new 
models of service have been established in many authorities, it is likely that any further 
cuts will continue to see a decline in some community services that promote well-being 
and help to tackle problems such as loneliness and isolation. 

Tudalen y pecyn 45



Y Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon 

Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 

HSCS(5)-18-17 Papur 4 / Paper 4 

 

\\gba01\mgdataroot\data\AgendaItemDocs\5\0\5\AI00036505\$l1wweuwx.docx 1 
 

Health, Social Care and Sport Committee Inquiry into Loneliness and 
Isolation 
 

Response from the British Red Cross in Wales (deadline 10th March 2017) 

About us: 

1. The British Red Cross helps millions of people in the UK and around the world to prepare for, 

respond to and recover from emergencies, disasters and conflicts. We are part of the global 

Red Cross and Red Crescent humanitarian network and we refuse to ignore people in crisis.  

We provide support at home, transport and mobility aids to help people when they face a crisis 

in their daily lives.  

Through our delivery of more than 200 independent living services across the UK, including 

almost 40 schemes across Wales, the British Red Cross supports thousands of people each 

year who are vulnerable and isolated.  

Through our partnership with the Co-op, from May 2017 we will supplement our existing 

independent living schemes by introducing new services in 39 communities across the UK – 

including 4 in Wales – which over the next two years will together provide direct support for up 

to 12,500 people experiencing or at risk of loneliness and social isolation. 

We are also one of the 13 partner organisations in the Jo Cox Commission on Loneliness, 

working together to start a national conversation on the widespread scale and impact of 

loneliness in the UK. 

We welcome the opportunity to submit evidence to the Health, Social Care and Sport 

Committee Inquiry into Loneliness and Isolation.  

 

The evidence for the scale and causes of the problems of loneliness and 

isolation: 

2. As evidenced in research with our staff, volunteers and service users1, a worryingly high 

number of people using our services live alone and struggle with the day-to-day tasks. They 

exhibit high levels of social isolation and even higher levels of loneliness. Social isolation and 

loneliness were mentioned most frequently as the underlying problems facing our service users. 

This research concluded that loneliness and social isolation is a crisis we cannot ignore. 

3. Our recent report ‘Trapped in a Bubble’ (2016)2, commissioned by the British Red Cross 

in partnership with Co-op, highlighted that 88% of respondents to a nationally representative 

public survey – and 90% of respondents from Wales – consider loneliness a very serious issue 

                                                
1 The Crises Facing Our Independent Living Service Users, available at http://www.redcross.org.uk/en/What-we-do/Health-and-

social-care/Independent-living/Loneliness-and-

isolation/~/media/BritishRedCross/Documents/What%20we%20do/UK%20services/The%20crises%20facing%20our%20IL%20servi

ce%20users.pdf 
2 Available at 

http://www.redcross.org.uk/~/media/BritishRedCross/Documents/What%20we%20do/UK%20services/Co_Op_Trapped_in_a_bubbl

e_report_AW.pdf 

Tudalen y pecyn 46

Eitem 5

http://www.redcross.org.uk/Get-involved/Corporate-support/Corporate-partners/Co-op


 2 
 

in the UK. Findings from the survey also indicate that loneliness is something that most people 

have experienced to some degree, and many are dealing with levels of loneliness that may 

have a negative impact on their quality of life. Half of those surveyed feel lonely at least 

sometimes and only one in five said they have never felt alone. 18% feel lonely ‘always’ or 

‘often’ – the equivalent of almost 458,000 people in Wales.  

4. The research brought together this public survey with qualitative evidence from more than 

100 people with personal experience of loneliness and over 45 experts. It looked in particular at 

how transitions, particularly role transitions, act as key triggers for loneliness.  Examples of life 

transitions include retirement, bereavement, a break-up of a relationship and health issues. 

These disruptions in a life can challenge self-identity and damage or sever social connections 

and make it harder to create new connections, particularly if barriers also exist across individual, 

community and social levels. Once a person becomes disconnected, loneliness itself becomes 

a barrier to connection as individuals question their own self-worth and the possibility of making 

connections creating feelings of vulnerability and anxiety. By failing to respond and provide 

appropriate support to people going through such transitions, loneliness can transition from a 

temporary situation to a chronic issue, further impacting on individuals and society. 

5. Participants in the research also identified a wide range of other causes of loneliness which 

were often interconnected. These barriers are categorised by four drivers: 

 Individual –  a loss of sense of self, poor health, low income/poverty, a lack of 

energy, low confidence, negative emotions and perceptions 

 Connections – a loss or lack of friends and acquaintances, family and colleagues 

 Community – lack of social activities and statutory services, lack of or cost of 

transport, neighbourhood safety 

 Society – social and cultural norms around who can connect with who, work/life 

balance, stigma of being lonely, lack of personal connection created by a digital age, 

insular communities, stigma created by the political landscape and financial 

hardships. 

6. The WHISC evaluation (2016) of the Red Cross Gofal project in Wales, which provided 

outcome focused befriending support to people over the age of 50, identified that many of the 

individuals accessing the service lived alone, had lost family and friends through bereavement 

and their social contact was limited. Many were physically impaired through age or ill-health, 

suffering from depression and anxiety, or had lost their independence and confidence following 

a stay in hospital. Service users reported being isolated due to no access to transport and/or 

living in a rural area or having lost their social connections due to health issues or as a 

consequence of moving home. 

 

The impact of loneliness and isolation on older people 

Tudalen y pecyn 47



 3 
 

7. On the surface, it can be hard to tell who is feeling lonely or isolated. This hidden issue is 

problematic because it affects people’s health and wellbeing and impacts on public services.  

Our literature review bringing together findings from more than 100 published studies from over 

40 years3 set out many of the impacts. A lack of social connections can be linked to 

cardiovascular health risks and increased death rates, blood pressure, signs of ageing, 

symptoms of depression and risk of dementia.  It could be as damaging to health as smoking 

and as strong a risk as obesity. Lack of social networks can be linked to poor diet, heavy 

drinking and increased risk of re-hospitalisation after an illness. Increased service usage by 

older people experiencing loneliness could cost up to £12,000 per older person over the next 15 

years.  

The Trapped in a Bubble report identifies the negative impacts of loneliness across a range of 

biological, psychological and social domains. The physical implications of loneliness often make 

it harder for people to undertake everyday tasks and routines and make it more difficult to 

engage with others. Respondents reported feeling tired, in poor health, anxious and existing 

symptoms being exaggerated. Loneliness was also recognised as leading to a lack of 

confidence, feeling alone, depression, and negative thoughts which at worst triggered thoughts 

of self-harm and suicide. 

 

8. Although the report recognises minimal differences in the overall causes of loneliness 

between rural and urban settings, rurality is identified as presenting specific barriers to social 

connection contributing to isolation in the form of fewer and more expensive support services 

and a lack of or unaffordable transport options. 

 

9. It is also important to stipulate that loneliness does not just affect older people. Many other 

groups in society, from young mums to those recently bereaved, experience feelings of 

loneliness and isolation. Indeed, our research found that self-reported loneliness was higher 

among 16 to 34 year olds than any other age range. 

 

Ways to address loneliness and isolation in older people 

10. Without the right support, loneliness can transition from a temporary situation to a chronic 

issue and can contribute to poor health and pressure on public services.  What is clear is that 

there is no one-size-fits-all solution to tackling these issues. Different people need different 

kinds of support.  

 
11. There is a strong case for intervening to prevent chronic loneliness, given its devastating 
wider effects on health and wellbeing – and resultant pressure on NHS and care services. 
Preventing minor situations escalating into crises is more cost-effective than picking up the 
pieces – and better for the individual. Our long-established record of service provision shows 
that providing low level support – such as assisting somebody to return home from hospital, 
making sure they have enough to eat or take their medication, rebuilding their confidence and 
independence – can generate real impacts in individual’s lives, as well as generating savings to 

                                                
3 Isolation and loneliness: An overview of the literature. Available at http://www.redcross.org.uk/en/What-we-do/Health-and-social-

care/Independent-living/Loneliness-and-

isolation/~/media/BritishRedCross/Documents/What%20we%20do/UK%20services/CoOpIsolationLonelinessA444ppAW.pdf 

Tudalen y pecyn 48



 4 
 

the public purse. An independent economic analysis of such services identified cost savings 
related to a reduced need for care and support equivalent to £880 per person.4 
 
12. Expert responders to the Trapped in a Bubble research identify that a key challenge in 
helping people to get support was due to a lack of awareness of what was available and poor 
signposting. The public survey supported this barrier to accessing support – with 75% of people 
who are regularly lonely saying they do not know where to turn for support. The report highlights 
that those experiencing loneliness tend to be reluctant to travel far from home to access 
opportunities, this is particularly challenging for those living in rural areas or those affected by 
health and mobility issues. 
 

13. Responders expressed that one-off interventions and short-term support without clear 

ongoing pathways for building independence or resilience were detrimental. 

 

14. They also identified a need for informal community led, peer centred support and a need for 

existing services to be more joined up in terms of signposting and creating structured pathways 

for people experiencing loneliness. 

 

15. The research highlights the need for a mix of tailored support at different stages which is 

preventative, responsive and restorative with some element of face-to-face connection. 

 

16. Services should give a sense of purpose; be peer-led or co-designed with people in similar 

circumstances; be local and easy to access; be free or affordable; instil a positive sense of 

identity; provide clear goals and pathways to reconnection; provide benefits to others (such as 

through volunteering) and community developments opportunities; bring people together around 

shared interests. 

 

17. The WHISC evaluation identifies the existence of varying models of service delivery to 

support older people. New models have developed in response to technological progress 

however it is important to refer back to the challenges of digital technology identified by the 

Trapped in a Bubble report where loneliness and isolation can be exacerbated by a lack of 

personal connectivity. Digital solutions clearly have a role to play – but their value is in 

supplementing and facilitating face-to-face contact, not replacing it. The report highlights that 

there has been an increase in service models such as social prescribing and collaborative 

working across sectors, but that there is still need for further development. 

 

18. According to the WHISC Gofal evaluation, service users’ emotional health, social networks 

and feelings of loneliness were improved as a consequence of the service. All beneficiaries of 

the service reported that having someone to talk to did reduce their feelings of loneliness and 

isolation and expressed a preference for face-to-face interaction. Beneficiaries also reported 

that their confidence had grown which enabled them to leave the house and socialise and they 

had built long-term opportunities to maintain social contact within their communities. 

Examples of services which address issues of isolation and loneliness: 

                                                
4  Personal Social Services Research Unit, LSE & Research, Evaluation and Impact team, 

British Red Cross (January 2014), An Analysis of the Economic Impacts of the British Red Cross 

Support at Home Service: pssru.ac.uk/archive/pdf/dp2869.pdf 

Tudalen y pecyn 49



 5 
 

19. Community Connectors – In response to the research outlined above, and using funds 

raised by the Co-op, from May 2017 we are introducing a brand new network of Community 

Connectors in 39 communities across the UK where we have identified low levels of current 

support and high levels of need – including Conwy, Carmarthenshire, Newport and Torfaen. 

The programme brings together elements of best practice identified in our existing services and 

through our research. Specialists in psychosocial support and safeguarding will work with 

people who are experiencing loneliness and social isolation, along with teams of volunteers. 

The connectors, , will provide up to 12 weeks of intensive, person-centred care, identifying 

relevant activities, interest groups and services to support individuals re-establish social 

connections and build independence and resilience. 

20. Positive Steps - a collaborative service between the Red Cross and Royal Voluntary Service 

supporting people over 50 years of age to regain their independence and reconnect with their 

community. The aim is for the individual to take charge of their situation and, with support, 

become more independent and live more fulfilled lives. 

This often means connecting with groups and organisations in their community. It might be a 

case of building confidence. It could also mean talking through issues and finding practical 

solutions to any obstacles or barriers which are holding them back. 

21. Community Navigators – A Denbighshire County Council initiative facilitated by employees 

from the Red Cross and Age Connects. Community Navigators work to develop a community-

focussed approach to social care and well-being. They work closely with the Single Point of 

Access (SPoA) to develop and support local networks and communities, promoting a range of 

help available within the community. Community navigators provide a link between health and 

social care, the citizen, their family and carers, and sources of support within the community 

and third sector. This is, effectively, a social prescribing service that links patients with non-

medical sources of support within the community. 

22. Dewis Cymru - an online public directory of information on resources available within 

communities including private, public and third sector information to support the well-being of 

individuals living in Wales. 

Current policy 

23. We welcome the progress of the Ageing Well in Wales programme and believe it has made 

tangible impact across the five streams. However, we would suggest that it is more challenging 

to demonstrate the impact of the programmes achievements in specifically addressing 

loneliness and isolation compared to that of the four other areas. We would also offer that it is 

more challenging to achieve complete community ownership of combating loneliness and 

isolation without the support of organisations. 

It is noticeable that the issue of loneliness and isolation has become more recognised and 

believe this is the result of the programme and other influencing factors. 

 

24. In our experience, our service users continue to cite shrinkage in community infrastructure 

as exacerbating their feelings of loneliness and isolation, be it the lack of or unaffordability of 

transport, a loss of local services and meeting places such as day centres, local post 

offices/shops and luncheon clubs.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 50



 6 
 

25. We welcome the intentions of the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 and 

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and believe that the framework of 

underpinning legislation provides opportunity to addressing the issue of isolation and loneliness. 

This is supported by our experience that loneliness and isolation are more frequently identified 

through the “What Matters Conversation”. However, the resourcing of specific and varied 

services is necessary as part of a wider community based preventative approach. 

Tudalen y pecyn 51



 
Glamorgan Voluntary Services 

 
Response from Glamorgan Voluntary Services (GVS) to the National Assembly for 
Wales, Health, Social Care and Sport Committee Inquiry on loneliness and isolation 
 
Introduction to GVS 
Glamorgan Voluntary Services (GVS) is an independent charity and has a flourishing 
membership of voluntary and community organisations active in the Vale of Glamorgan.  
We help to improve the quality of life of people and communities by supporting volunteers, 
volunteering opportunities and voluntary groups.  
 
GVS delivers an array of quality services to meet the needs of voluntary groups.  We are a 
one stop shop for the voluntary sector.   We champion best practice throughout voluntary 
organisations so that they excel in delivering their aims and objectives. 
 
GVS empowers voluntary groups, providing many channels of engagement and quality 
services to enable them to excel at serving their communities.  Our role is to provide 
information, advice and guidance on all aspects of volunteering for both volunteers and 
recruiting organisations. 
 
The Health and Social Care Facilitator in GVS supports the third sector and statutory 
partners in a number of ways: 

 Promoting partnership working within the sector and across sectors 
 Promoting third sector organisations and services to statutory partners and vice 

versa 
 Representing the third sector at strategic planning and partnership groups 
 Engaging the sector in consultations and engagement about health and social 

services 
 
The answers in this response will focus primarily on how the third sector can address 
loneliness and isolation, identifying areas of good practice in the Vale and Cardiff and 
areas for future development.   
 
Answers to Inquiry questions 
 
1. The evidence for the scale and causes of the problems of loneliness and 

isolation. 
 
The issues of loneliness and isolation have been well researched and the evidence base is 
extensive.  In addition, there is evidence which shows the adverse effect that loneliness 
and isolation can have on mental and physical health.  This response will not therefore go 
into detail on the evidence, but highlights below some headlines from relevant research: 
 

 Greater involvement in leisure activities is associated with better health in older age 
(Chang et al, 2014). 

 Social disconnectedness and perceived isolation are independently associated with 
lower levels of self-reported physical health (Cornwell & Waite, 2009). 

Y Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon 
Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 
HSCS(5)-18-17 Papur 5 / Paper 5 

Tudalen y pecyn 52

Eitem 6



2 

 

 Participatory interventions and those involving social activity and support are more 
likely to be beneficial in terms of reducing loneliness (Dickens et al, 2011). 

 The connection between social isolation and loneliness is complicated, for example 
socially isolated people are not necessarily lonely (Dahlberg & McKee, 2014). 

 The Campaign to End Loneliness produces research bulletins and guides, including a 
guide for commissioners and local authorities. 
http://www.campaigntoendloneliness.org/research-bulletin/ 

 The RVS found that nearly three quarters of people over 75 who live alone feel lonely. 
http://www.royalvoluntaryservice.org.uk/our-impact/reports-and-reviews/loneliness-
amongst-older-people-and-impact-of-family-connections 

 Ageing Well in Wales highlights research which indicates that loneliness has an effect 
on mortality that is similar in size to smoking 15 cigarettes a day. 

 Age Cymru in it’s No one should have no one campaign states that 75,000 older 
people in Wales have reported “always or often” feeling lonely.  
http://www.ageuk.org.uk/Global/Age-
Cymru/Policy_and_Campaigns/English%20Manifesto.pdf?epslanguage=en-GB-
CY?dtrk=true 
 

Given the evidence base already in existence, and the clear indication of the extent of the 
problem and its effects on older people’s wellbeing, it would seem that there is a real need 
for concerted action on behalf of statutory authorities and the third sector to develop 
sustainable services which alleviate loneliness and isolation. 
 
2. The impact of loneliness and isolation on the use of public services, particularly 

health and social care.  
 
As already noted loneliness and isolation are different.  Each will have a different impact 
on the use of public services. 
 
The negative effect on wellbeing brought about by loneliness is likely to result in a 
continuing cycle of loneliness.  Lonely, older people may experience depression, be 
reluctant to leave their house and lose confidence in their ability to be socially active and 
play a full role in their community.  Without support, there is a risk that lonely older people 
will become more disengaged from the wider community and more reliant on the services 
which they already know about, which in many cases is likely to be their GP. 
 
GVS works with GP surgeries in Barry and each one has an identified Third Sector 
Champion who is usually a practice manager or member of reception staff.  Anecdotal 
evidence from them highlights that loneliness and isolation is a key factor facing their 
elderly patients, with some people calling surgeries because they have no one else to call. 
 
United Welsh provide a service called Wellbeing4U which has Wellbeing Co-ordinators 
based in GP surgeries in Cardiff and the Vale.  They work on a one to one basis with 
people who experience loneliness and isolation and help them link to local services.  This 
can alleviate pressure on GP surgeries and improve people’s wellbeing as they increase 
their interaction with their communities. 
 
The British Red Cross and RVS provide a service called Positive Steps in Cardiff and Vale 
which works with older people who have lost confidence following an illness or 
hospitalisation.  They will support them to achieve goals they have identified, which may 

Tudalen y pecyn 53

http://www.campaigntoendloneliness.org/research-bulletin/
http://www.royalvoluntaryservice.org.uk/our-impact/reports-and-reviews/loneliness-amongst-older-people-and-impact-of-family-connections
http://www.royalvoluntaryservice.org.uk/our-impact/reports-and-reviews/loneliness-amongst-older-people-and-impact-of-family-connections
http://www.ageuk.org.uk/Global/Age-Cymru/Policy_and_Campaigns/English%20Manifesto.pdf?epslanguage=en-GB-CY?dtrk=true
http://www.ageuk.org.uk/Global/Age-Cymru/Policy_and_Campaigns/English%20Manifesto.pdf?epslanguage=en-GB-CY?dtrk=true
http://www.ageuk.org.uk/Global/Age-Cymru/Policy_and_Campaigns/English%20Manifesto.pdf?epslanguage=en-GB-CY?dtrk=true


3 

 

be something as small as being able to go to their local café, and will then provide a 
befriending service once the person has regained their confidence. 
 
Age Connects Cardiff and the Vale has a Senior Health Shop in Barry with a café run by 
volunteers.  The Shop not only provides older people with an opportunity to socialise and 
have a hot meal, but there are also a range of weekly information sessions on topics such 
as house adaptations, Telecare, welfare benefits. 
 
All the third sector services mentioned in this response help to reduce loneliness and 
isolation and also help to support people to remain independent and be less reliant on 
public services. 
 
3. Ways of addressing problems of loneliness and isolation. 
 
The evidence base identifies a range of services which could help alleviate loneliness and 
isolation in older people.  They include quite simple solutions.  Age Cymru in their No one 
should have no one campaign outline that older people have asked for lunch clubs, free or 
subsidised transport, a regular visitor/befriender and/or a regular phone call. 
 
All of these are tried and tested solutions, can be relatively easy to set up and are cost 
effective.  There are numerous examples of third sector organisations which already 
provide these services or which have provided them in the past.   
 
However, these services require funding and cannot always be reliant on community 
action only.  Unfortunately, many of these essential third sector services, which were 
funded by statutory sources of funding, have been lost or reduced as local authorities have 
had to identify savings. 
 
GVS managed a Lottery funded befriending project called Friendly AdvantAGE which 
provided a range of befriending services for older people, from 2012 to 2016.  Partners 
were Age Connects Cardiff and the Vale, Dinas Powys Voluntary Concern (DPVC), Scope 
and C3SC, with each partner delivering a specific strand. 
 
The project has now finished, however Age Connects and DPVC have been provided with 
funding from the Intermediate Care Fund (ICF) to continue some of the elements in the 
Vale of Glamorgan.  It is hoped this funding will continue from April 2017. 
 
Friendly AdvantAGE was independently evaluated by Welsh Institute of Health and Social 
Care, who evidenced the following:  

 During its four and half years of operation Friendly AdvantAGE delivered excellent 
value for money, providing either 1-2-1 befriending or group activities to over 1,000 
beneficiaries at a cost of less than £4, per beneficiary, per week. 

 60% of beneficiaries who admitted to being lonely, agreed that their social interaction 
or well-being had increased 

 76% of beneficiaries who had low levels of confidence, agreed that their confidence 
has increased during their time with the project. 

 The volunteer led project recruited 175 volunteers, who provided over 11,500 hours of 
volunteering to support older people reduce loneliness and social isolation. 

 
It shouldn’t be forgotten that loneliness and isolation is not just an issue which affects older 
people.  Age Connects Cardiff and the Vale has a Third Sector Broker who is based in the 
Contact1V Centre in the Vale of Glamorgan, funded via the ICF.  Their remit is to work 

Tudalen y pecyn 54



4 

 

with frail older people and ensure they have in place the services they need.  The main 
reason for their referrals is loneliness and isolation, especially as they experience a 
deterioration in their mobility and health.   
 
However, in addition to this, they have also received a lot of referrals in relation to younger 
people, in their 30s and 40s with long term conditions, who are isolated and lonely.  There 
is clearly a need for support to help them access social activities. 
 
The range of third sector services highlighted here are essential.  They clearly align to the 
Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales ) Act, the preventative agenda and are likely to 
receive more referrals as statutory sources constrict. 
 
4. Current policy solutions in Wales. 
 
It is encouraging that the Minister for Social Services and Public Health recognises 
loneliness and isolation as an important public health issue.  It would be useful to know 
how this will translate into planning of local health and social care services and how local 
authorities and Health Boards will be encouraged to support the development of local 
preventative services, at a time of restrictive finances. 
 
The national indicator, for the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act, which relates 
to the percentage of people who are lonely is also to be welcomed.  Again, it would be 
useful to know how performance against the national indicators will be measured, the 
outcomes of the performance and how this will translate into planning of local health and 
social care services. 
 
 
 
If you would like further information, please contact: 
 
Linda Pritchard, Health and Social Care Facilitator 
Glamorgan Voluntary Services 
Tel:  
Email:  
 
http://www.gvs.wales/ 
 
8th March 2017 

Tudalen y pecyn 55

http://www.gvs.wales/


NHS Wales’ medical workforce faces a significant challenge to meet the health needs of a growing
and ageing population with increasingly complex conditions. Winter 2016-17 saw extreme pressures on
services resulting in declining 4-hour standards, crowded departments and ‘exit block’, effecting the
overall quality of care that patients received.

A&E performance

Recommendations

• Exit block and overcrowding must be tackled. More social care in the community and an increase in
the number of hospital beds would help minimise these prevailing issues.

• More social care provision is also paramount to keep to pace with the growing and ageing
population and relieve pressure off primary and secondary services.

• Safe and sustainable staffing levels must be achieved. To fill the current workforce spaces and to
keep up with demand, more emergency medicine trainee places are essential.

• Primary care facilities should be co-located with ED services including frailty teams, pharmacists,
mental health specialists and GPs so patients receive the correct treatment as quickly as possible.

• To adequately prepare for winter 2017-18, we believe that planning needs to start now.

The number of people 
waiting over 12 hours 
has risen by 35% in 
only two years. In Jan 
2017 alone, 5.2% of ED 
patients waited more 
than 12 hours.

A&E attendances have 
increased by 5.4% in 3
years, equal to the 
number seen in a 
standard Welsh DGH ED:
• 306,739 Oct-Jan ‘14
• 323,429 Oct-Jan ’17.

Hospital beds

-14.6%
There has been a steady decline in the
number of hospital beds between 2009
and 2016 by 1,872 beds or -14.6%:
• 12,806.7 beds in 2009/10
• 10,934.7 beds in 2015/16.

Growing and 
ageing 

population

Rising A&E 
attendances 

and social care 
needs

Increase in 
admissions into 

hospital

Fewer available 
hospital beds 

and staff 

More A&E 
crowding and 

declining 4-hour 
standard 

Need for more 
social care 

provision and 
NHS staff

By 2039, the population 
of Wales is forecast to 
grow by at least 5% 
whilst the number of 
65+ will rise by 44%.

9,437

9,782

12,760

0 2,000 4,000 6,000 8,000 10,000 12,000 14,000

2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

Number of people waiting more than 12 

hours in EDs (October-January)

Attendances during 
October 2016 to
January 2017 rose by 
379 visits compared to 
the previous year:
• 323,050 Oct-Jan ‘16
• 323,429 Oct-Jan ’17.

Population growth
The number of people 
aged 65+ has risen by 
2% in only one year:
• 614,747 in 2014
• 624,773 in 2015.

A continuous cycle

ED attendances

4-hour performance 
has decreased from 
87.5% (Dec 2013) to 
75.9% (Dec 2016) in 
major departments –
far below the target 
of 95%. 

The number of consultants per attendance 
has also deteriorated:
• 1 to every 11,575 in 2013-14
• 1 to every 12,230 in 2014-15. 

Hospital staff

Winter Pressures in Welsh Emergency 
Departments Explained

Y Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon 
Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 
HSCS(5)-18-17 Papur 6 / Paper 6 

Tudalen y pecyn 56

Eitem 8.1



 
 

 

 
 
Royal College of Physicians in Wales, Baltic House, Mount Stuart Square, Cardiff CF10 5FH 
Coleg Brenhinol y Meddygon yng Nghymru, Tŷ Baltic, Sgwâr Mount Stuart, Caerdydd CF10 5FH  
 +44 (0)75 5787 5119  www.rcplondon.ac.uk/wales  Wales@rcplondon.ac.uk 

 

 
 
 
 

Coleg Brenhinol y Meddygon (Cymru) 
Tŷ Baltig, Sgwâr Mount Stuart 

Caerdydd CF10 5FH 
 

 +44 (0)75 5787 5119 
 www.rcplondon.ac.uk/wales 

Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon 
Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru 
Caerdydd CF99 1NA 
 
06 Mehefin 2017 
 
Annwyl Dai Lloyd AC, 
 
Rwyf yn ysgrifennu heddiw ar ran Coleg Brenhinol y Meddygon (RCP) yng Nghymru i ofyn i 
Bwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon y Senedd ystyried cynnal sesiwn ddilynol yng 
nghyswllt yr ymchwiliad i barodrwydd ar gyfer y gaeaf 2016/17, a ddaeth i ben yn gynharach eleni. 
 
Er na chawsom ein gwahodd i roi tystiolaeth lafar yn yr ymchwiliad hwn, fe wnaethom ni gyflwyno 
tystiolaeth ysgrifenedig fanwl (sydd wedi’i hatodi), a chawsom ein gwahodd gan Lywodraeth 
Cymru i roi tystiolaeth i werthusiad Bwrdd y Rhaglen Genedlaethol ar gyfer Gofal Heb ei Drefnu 
(NPUC) ar wydnwch gwasanaethau iechyd a gofal yn ystod gaeaf 2016/17. Rwyf wedi atodi ein 
tystiolaeth i’r gwerthusiad hwn, a gafodd ei ysgrifennu ar ôl ymgynghori’n uniongyrchol â’n 
cyfeillion a'n haelodau. Rydyn ni hefyd wedi cyhoeddi adroddiad byr ym mis Ebrill 2017,  Teimlo’r 
straen, a oedd yn tynnu sylw at y pwysau a wynebir gan ein doctoriaid, yn ôl arolwg darlun cryno a 
gynhaliwyd ym mis Ionawr 2017 (hefyd wedi’i atodi). 
 
Mae ein cyfeillion a'n haelodau wedi nodi tair prif flaenoriaeth ar gyfer y gaeaf nesaf: 
 

1. Blaengynllunio system gyfan a gaiff ei harwain yn glinigol 
Dylid dechrau cynllunio gofal ar gyfer y gaeaf sydd wedi’i gyllido’n briodol, ac sy’n cael ei 
arwain yn glinigol cyn gynted â phosib bob blwyddyn. Dylid defnyddio dull system gyfan i 
gynllunio adnoddau ar gyfer cynnydd yn y galw, gan ddefnyddio cydweithwyr ar draws 
gwasanaethau meddygol, llawfeddygol, gofal cymdeithasol ac arbenigol: mae’n rhaid i 
bawb sy’n gweithio i’r GIG ac ym maes gofal cymdeithasol fod yn gyfrifol am gynllunio ar 
gyfer y gaeaf. Dylid annog atebion arloesol sy’n canolbwyntio ar gleifion; wrth gynllunio 
swyddi, dylid cydnabod y dylai mewnbwn clinigol aciwt ganolbwyntio ar ddarparu gofal 
wedi'i gynllunio ac ymchwil yn ystod y gwanwyn a’r haf, a chanolbwyntio o’r newydd ar 
ofal heb ei gynllunio yn ystod misoedd y gaeaf. 

 
2. Mwy o adnoddau a chapasiti staff 

Mae gweithlu’r GIG ar eu gliniau ar hyn o bryd, ac mae’r argyfwng recriwtio ym maes 
meddygaeth yn gwaethygu – y llynedd, ni lwyddwyd i lenwi 40% o swyddi gwag meddygon 

Y Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon 
Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 
HSCS(5)-18-17 Papur 7 / Paper 7 

Tudalen y pecyn 57

Eitem 8.2

https://www.rcplondon.ac.uk/file/6381/download?token=KYamBYZS
https://www.rcplondon.ac.uk/file/6381/download?token=KYamBYZS


 
 

 

 
 
Royal College of Physicians in Wales, Baltic House, Mount Stuart Square, Cardiff CF10 5FH 
Coleg Brenhinol y Meddygon yng Nghymru, Tŷ Baltic, Sgwâr Mount Stuart, Caerdydd CF10 5FH  
 +44 (0)75 5787 5119  www.rcplondon.ac.uk/wales  Wales@rcplondon.ac.uk 

 

ymgynghorol yng Nghymru ac felly mae bylchau mawr yn y rota meddygon dan 
hyfforddiant ym mhob ysbyty yng Nghymru. Mae’n rhaid i’r GIG ganolbwyntio ar ddarparu 
digon o welyau meddygol, wedi'u cefnogi gan lefel ddiogel a chyson o staff ym mhob rhan 
o’r gwasanaethau meddygaeth, nyrsio, y therapïau, gwasanaethau perthynol a 
gwasanaethau cymorth, gan gynnwys fflebotomi. Mae’n rhaid i Lywodraeth Cymru a GIG 
Cymru ddatblygu strategaeth locwm sy'n cael ei gweithredu drwy Gymru gyfan ac sy’n 
cynnwys uchafswm cyflog i ddoctoriaid. 

 
3. Gwasanaethau cymdeithasol a gofal integredig 

Mae’n rhaid i ofal cymdeithasol fod yn bartner integredig a blaengar wrth gynllunio gofal ar 
gyfer y gaeaf. Dylai cydweithio yn well fel tîm ar draws gwasanaethau iechyd a gofal 
cymdeithasol oresgyn y rhwystrau, ac mae gwasanaethau cymdeithasol yn cael eu hannog i 
gyflymu'r broses o drosglwyddo gofal o'r ysbyty. Bydd hyn yn gofyn am ragor o adnoddau i 
dimau gofal cymdeithasol ledled Cymru, yn enwedig i’r rheini sydd wedi’u lleoli mewn 
ysbytai ac sy’n gweithio ar reng flaen gofal gaeaf. 

 
Nid ydym wedi cael ein darbwyllo bod byrddau iechyd wedi dysgu o brofiadau’r gorffennol. Dylai 
cynlluniau ar gyfer y gaeaf fod yn cael eu paratoi erbyn hyn, a dylai bod strategaethau’n cael eu 
cyflwyno nawr er mwyn cynllunio ymlaen llaw ar gyfer yr hydref. Un o’r darnau mwyaf o adborth a 
gawsom gan ein haelodau oedd nad oedd ymyriadau pwysicaf y gaeaf diwethaf wedi digwydd yn 
ddigon cynnar i wneud gwahaniaeth go iawn i lif, canlyniadau a phrofiadau cleifion. 
 
Mae’n bosib y bydd y Pwyllgor am ystyried gwneud gwaith dilynol ar y darn hwn o waith gyda'r 
ysgrifennydd iechyd a'r byrddau iechyd, a byddai Coleg Brenhinol y Meddygon yn hapus i gefnogi 
hyn ag unrhyw dystiolaeth lafar neu ysgrifenedig a all fod yn fuddiol i chi. 
 
I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch â'm cydweithiwr Lowri Jackson, uwch gynghorydd polisi a 
materion cyhoeddus Coleg Brenhinol y Meddygon yng Nghymru drwy anfon e-bost at 
Lowri.Jackson@rcplondon.ac.uk. 
 
Cofion gorau, 
 

                                  
 
Dr Gareth Llewelyn 
RCP vice president for Wales 
Is-lywydd Coleg Brenhinol y Meddygon yng Nghymru 
  

Tudalen y pecyn 58



 

 

Ymchwiliad i barodrwydd am 
y gaeaf 2016/17 
Ymateb RCP Cymru 
 
Pwyntiau allweddol 
 

 Mae’r sialensiau sy’n wynebu byrddau iechyd wrth iddynt baratoi am y gaeaf yn 
gymhleth. Maent yn adlewyrchu’r pwysau ehangach ar y GIG ac ar ofal cymdeithasol. 

 Mae byrddau iechyd yn gweithio mewn cyd-destun o ddiffyg cyllid, diffyg meddygon a 
cheisio ei dal hi ymhob man. Mae hyn yn arwain at bwysau cynyddol ar ysbytai. 

 Yn ôl gwaith ymchwil diweddar gan y RCP ni chafodd 40% o swyddi am feddygon 
ymgynghorol a hysbysebwyd y llynedd yng Nghymru eu llenwi; gan amlaf, oherwydd 
nad oedd neb wedi ymgeisio. Mae hyn yn cael effaith ddifrifol ar allu meddygon i 
ddarparu gofal o ansawdd uchel i gleifion. 

 Mae system gofal cymdeithasol sydd dan bwysau, diffyg staffio a diffyg gwelyau 
mewn ysbytai i gyd yn cyfrannu at oedi gyda throsglwyddo gofal. 

 Mae’r RCP, drwy ei Raglen Ysbytai'r Dyfodol a’n gwaith gydag ysbytai yng Nghymru, 
yn ymchwilio i ffyrdd newydd ac arloesol o ddarparu gofal. 

 Mae hyn yn cynnwys cydlynu gofal a thriniaeth i gleifion yn well fel nad oes angen eu 
derbyn yn ddiangen i’r ysbyty, a’u helpu i adael yr ysbyty mor fuan â phosib. Rydyn ni 
hefyd yn datblygu prosiectau tele-iechyd yng ngogledd Cymru ac yn annog ysbytai a 
gwasanaethau cymunedol i weithio mewn partneriaeth. 

 
Am fwy o wybodaeth, cysylltwch gyda:  
 
Lowri Jackson 
Uwch gynghorydd polisi a materion cyhoeddus RCP yng Nghymru 
Lowri.Jackson@rcplondon.ac.uk  
075 5787 5119 
  

Tudalen y pecyn 59

http://www.rcplondon.ac.uk/projects/future-hospital-programme
https://www.rcplondon.ac.uk/projects/policy-and-public-affairs-wales
mailto:Lowri.Jackson@rcplondon.ac.uk


 

 2 Ymchwiliad i barodrwydd am y gaeaf 2016/17 © Coleg Brenhinol y Meddygon 2016 

 
 Coleg Brenhinol y Meddygon (Cymru) 

Tŷ Baltig, Sgwâr Mount Stuart, 
Caerdydd CF10 5FH 

+44 (0)75 5787 5119 
 www.rcplondon.ac.uk/wales 
Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon 
Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru  
Caerdydd CF99 1NA 

 
From the RCP vice president for Wales  

Gan Is-lywydd Cymru’r RCP  
Dr Alan Rees MD FRCP 

Alan.Rees@rcplondon.ac.uk 
  
SeneddHealth@assembly.wales From the RCP registrar 

Gan Gofrestrydd yr RCP 
Dr Andrew Goddard FRCP 

Andrew.Goddard@rcplondon.ac.uk 

 
09 Medi 2016 

  
Annwyl gydweithiwr,  
 

Ymchwiliad i barodrwydd am y gaeaf 2016/17 
 

1. Diolch i chi am y cyfle i ymateb i’ch ymgynghoriad ar ymchwiliad pwyllgor y Cynulliad i 
barodrwydd am y gaeaf 2016/17. Mae ein hymateb yn seiliedig ar brofiadau ein cymrodyr a’n 
haelodau a chymerwyd pob dyfyniad, oni nodir fel arall, o gyflwyniadau tystiolaeth a 
dderbyniwyd gennym gan gymrodyr ac aelodau’r RCP. 

 
2. Mae Coleg Brenhinol y Meddygon (RCP) eisiau gwella gofal cleifion a lleihau salwch, yn y 

Deyrnas Unedig ac ar draws y byd. Sefydliad claf-ganolog wedi’i arwain yn glinigol ydyn ni. Mae 
ein 33,000 o aelodau ar draws y byd, gan gynnwys 1,100 yng Nghymru, yn gweithio mewn 
ysbytai ac yn y gymuned ar draws 30 o wahanol arbenigeddau meddygol, yn rhoi diagnosis ac yn 
trin miliynau o gleifion gydag ystod eang dros ben o gyflyrau meddygol. 

 
3. Mae nifer o rwystrau sy’n atal ysbytai rhag delio’n effeithiol â’r pwysau gofal annisgwyl a ddaw 

yn y gaeaf. Mae’r rhwystrau’n cynnwys oedi gyda throsglwyddo gofal sy’n arwain at reoli’r llif 
cleifion yn aneffeithiol. Yn ôl astudiaethau o Loegr, awgrymir bod gymaint â 40% o gleifion sy’n 
marw yn yr ysbyty heb yr anghenion meddygol a fyddai’n ofynnol iddynt fod yno1. Ar ben hynny, 
mae o leiaf 25% o welyau mewn ysbytai’n cael eu meddiannu gan bobl gyda dementia a llawer 
ohonynt yn debygol o aros ddwywaith gymaint yn yr ysbyty na chleifion eraill dros 65 oed2. Yn 
aml, y rheswm am hyn yw diffyg gofal yn y gymuned ar eu cyfer. Gwaethygir y sefyllfa gan yr 
amgylchiadau ariannol anodd y mae’r GIG yn gweithio ynddynt.  

 
4. Mae rheoli’r llif cleifion rhwng yr adran frys, yr uned feddygol aciwt a’r wardiau arbenigol yn 

dibynnu ar drosglwyddo gofal yn effeithiol a rhyddhau cleifion yn brydlon. Mae diffyg cyllid i ofal 
cymdeithasol, prinder gwelyau a phroblemau gyda recriwtio a chadw meddygon yn golygu bod 
ysbytai’n aml yn cael trafferth trosglwyddo cleifion yn effeithiol a chynnal ansawdd y gofal ar yr 
un pryd. 

 

                                                
1
 Coleg Brenhinol y Meddygon 2014. National care of the dying audit for hospitals, Lloegr: Mai 2014 

2
 Y Gymdeithas Alzheimer. Fix Dementia Care in Hospitals. 2016  

Tudalen y pecyn 60



 

 3 Ymchwiliad i barodrwydd am y gaeaf 2016/17 © Coleg Brenhinol y Meddygon 2016 

Nid wyf yn meddwl bod unrhyw gynllunio o ddifrif yn digwydd. Yr hyn sydd ei 
angen yw mwy o gapasiti. Dyna’r wers sydd angen ei dysgu ac nid yw hynny 
wedi digwydd. 

[Meddyg ymgynghorol yng Nghymru] 
 

5. Mae ein haelodau a’n cymrodyr yn gweithio mewn gwasanaeth iechyd o ddiffyg cyllid, diffyg 
meddygon a than ormod o bwysau. Mae’r galw gan gleifion ynghyd â bylchau mawr yn y 
gweithlu’n ei gwneud yn anodd gofalu am gleifion. Yn 2014-2015 dywedodd 21% o feddygon 
ymgynghorol y DU fod ’bylchau sylweddol yn rotâu staff meddygol dan hyfforddiant a gofal 
cleifion yn dioddef o’r herwydd’3. Mae’r ffigurau hyn yn destun pryder oherwydd yr 
arbenigeddau sydd fwyaf cysylltiedig ag ysgafnu’r pwysau ar ofal annisgwyl yn y gaeaf sy’n 
gweld y bylchau staffio mwyaf, gyda meddygaeth aciwt a geriatrig yn adrodd y nifer fwyaf o 
apwyntiadau ymgynghorol wedi eu canslo neu wedi methu. 

 
Argyfwng gweithlu sy’n gwaethygu 
 

6. Mae’r argyfwng staffio hwn yn cael effaith fawr ar allu meddygon i asesu cleifion yn sydyn ar ôl 
iddynt fynychu adrannau brys, i deilwrio eu cynlluniau gofal ac i drosglwyddo eu gofal yn ddiogel 
a phrydlon. Gall hyn gael effaith negyddol ar brofiad y claf a golygu nad yw wardiau’n gallu 
ysgafnu’r pwysau ar adrannau brys. Mae targedau’n anodd eu cyrraedd oni bai fod digon o staff 
i drin cleifion neu i’w trosglwyddo i ofal cymdeithasol mewn da bryd. 

 
7. Ar hyn o bryd nid oes unrhyw ddull strategol cenedlaethol o gynllunio’r gweithlu meddygol yng 

Nghymru. Dros y blynyddoedd, mae hyn wedi cyfrannu at drafferthion gyda recriwtio a chadw’r 
gweithlu meddygol, yn enwedig meddygon dan hyfforddiant. Rydym yn gryf o blaid datblygu 
strategaeth genedlaethol glinigol ar gyfer hyfforddiant a’r gweithlu meddygol yng Nghymru. 
Mae gan Gymru gyfle gwirioneddol i ddatblygu model arloesol a phwyswn dros roi 
arweinyddiaeth glinigol wrth galon y broses honno. 
 

8. Mae’n greiddiol bwysig hefyd bod Cymru’n gwneud ymdrech fwy cydweithredol i ddenu ei 
myfyrwyr ei hun i’r ysgolion meddygol yng Nghaerdydd ac Abertawe. Gallai’r myfyrwyr hyn fod 
yn fwy tebygol o aros yng Nghymru ar gyfer eu hyfforddiant ôl-radd, ac os ydynt yn gadael maen 
nhw’n fwy tebygol o ddod yn ôl adref wedyn. Dim ond 30% o fyfyrwyr yn ysgolion meddygol 
Cymru sy’n dod o Gymru. Mae hyn cymharu gyda 55% yn yr Alban, 80% yn Lloegr a 85% yng 
Ngogledd Iwerddon.4 Rhaid i ysgolion meddygol gynnig mwy o leoedd israddedig i fyfyrwyr o 
Gymru er mwyn datblygu a chadw gweithlu ’cartref’ a dylent fuddsoddi mewn rhaglenni 
allgymorth sy’n annog ceisiadau gan gymunedau gwledig, anghysbell a Chymraeg eu hiaith.  

 
Prinder gwelyau a diffyg capasiti  
 

9. Mae prinder gwelyau mewn ysbytai hefyd yn gwaethygu problemau gyda llif cleifion. Gan y DU y 
mae’r ail nifer isaf o welyau ysbyty am bob mil o’r boblogaeth ymhlith 23 o wledydd Ewrop. 
Dywed ein haelodau a’n cymrodyr yn aml fod symud cleifion o unedau meddygol aciwt i wardiau 
cyffredinol neu arbenigol yn broblem oherwydd nad oes gwelyau ar gael. Cleifion hŷn yw’r rhain 
y credir eu bod yn ddigon da i dderbyn gofal yn y gymuned ond ni ellir eu trosglwyddo oherwydd 
bod diffyg gwasanaethau yn y gymuned. 

  

                                                
3
 Ffederasiwn Coleg Brenhinol Meddygon y Deyrnas Unedig. Census of consultant physicians and higher specialty 

trainees in the UK  2014-15. Llundain: Coleg Brenhinol y Meddygon, 2016.  
4
 NHS Education for Scotland. Domicile of UK undergraduate medical students. Mawrth 2013 

Tudalen y pecyn 61

https://www.rcplondon.ac.uk/projects/outputs/2014-15-census-uk-consultants-and-higher-specialty-trainees
https://www.rcplondon.ac.uk/projects/outputs/2014-15-census-uk-consultants-and-higher-specialty-trainees
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjW0vL7sd3OAhUG6RQKHfqTB74QFggeMAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.nes.scot.nhs.uk%2Fmedia%2F3046551%2F2013-03-ug_uk_domicile_report-final.pdf&usg=AFQjCNE0U0NpAc9ftkppIcF-N33VT4uqqg&sig2=cGjZGL8j--Pf8E0c02OTZg


 

 4 Ymchwiliad i barodrwydd am y gaeaf 2016/17 © Coleg Brenhinol y Meddygon 2016 

10. Mae tystiolaeth glir fod unedau meddygol aciwt (AMU) sy’n cael eu rhedeg yn dda’n helpu i 
leihau lefelau marwolaeth, hyd yr arhosiad a lefelau ail-dderbyn i’r ysbyty5. Mae gan unedau 
AMU sydd wedi’u staffio gan dimau amlddisgyblaethol a’u harwain gan feddygon gofal aciwt 
botensial i wella ansawdd a diogelwch y gofal i gyfran fawr o gleifion gyda chyflyrau aciwt. 
Pwyswn ar y byrddau iechyd i fuddsoddi yn eu gweithlu meddygol cyffredinol ac mewn unedau 
AMU fel bod ysbytai’n gallu ymateb yn fwy effeithiol a diogel i’r galwadau cynyddol gymhleth a 
roddir ar ysbytai o ran gofal meddygol aciwt. 

 
Ailddylunio’r system gofal diwrnod hwnnw  
 

11. Mae rhai timau clinigol, gan gynnwys rhai ym Mwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Abertawe Bro Morgannwg 
a Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Cwm Taf wedi cydnabod bod angen dull newydd o weithio i ddelio â’r 
pwysau trwm sydd ar adrannau brys, ac wedi llwyddo i ail-ddylunio eu systemau i weithredu 
gofal brys diwrnod hwnnw (AEC) fel rhan o’r ateb6. Gofal clinigol yw gofal diwrnod hwnnw, sy’n 
gallu cynnwys diagnosis, arsylwi, triniaeth ac adsefydlu, gofal nad yw’n cael ei ddarparu drwy’r 
system gwelyau ysbyty draddodiadol neu fel rhan o wasanaethau cleifion allanol traddodiadol 7. 

 
12. Mae gweithredu AEC yn sicrhau, lle bo hynny’n briodol, bod cleifion brys sy’n cyrraedd yr ysbyty 

i gael eu derbyn yn cael eu hasesu’n gyflym a’u ffrydio i AEC i dderbyn diagnosis a thriniaeth y 
diwrnod hwnnw, gyda gofal clinigol parhaus wedyn. Mae prosesau’n cael eu cyflymu, gan 
gynnwys adolygiad gan ymgynghorydd, mynediad amserol at wasanaethau diagnostig a 
thriniaethau, i gyd o fewn un diwrnod gwaith. Mae hyn wedi gwella’r canlyniadau clinigol a 
phrofiad y claf, ac wedi lleihau costau. Mae timau clinigol sy’n gweithredu’r dull hwn yn adrodd 
y medrant reoli nifer sylweddol o gleifion brys yn gyflym, heb fod angen eu derbyn yn llawn, ac 
yn troi o leiaf 20-30% o achosion brys at ofal AEC8.  

 
13. Gall AEC fod yn arbennig o werthfawr i asesu a rheoli cleifion hŷn, eiddil a reolir drwy lwybrau a 

gefnogir gan dîm amlddisgyblaethol gyda chysylltiadau da i wasanaethau gofal sylfaenol, 
cymunedol ac awdurdod lleol. Gall y cysylltiadau hyn gynnig asesiadau ac ymyriadau chwim i 
bobl hŷn, ac osgoi arhosiad mewn ysbyty. I bobl hŷn, mae mynediad at y gwasanaethau hyn yn 
bwysig fel y medrant aros yn eu cartrefi eu hunain ac osgoi cael eu hail-dderbyn yn ddiangen. 

 
Yn fy mwrdd iechyd i, yr agweddau cadarnhaol gwirioneddol ar gynllunio ar 
gyfer y gaeaf yw’r hyfforddiant gwella ansawdd sydd wedi’i roi i staff cartrefi 
gofal (a’r cynllunio gofal rhagflaenorol o ganlyniad), y pwyslais ar gynllunio 
gofal rhagweithiol i bobl gyda mwy nag un cyflwr neu sy’n eiddil, a gweithio’n 
integredig â’r cyngor a’r trydydd sector. 

[Meddyg dan hyfforddiant yng Nghymru] 
 
Datblygu modelau gofal newydd i atal derbyn cleifion i’r ysbyty   
 

14. Mae’r RCP hefyd yn gweithio gyda thimau clinigol lleol drwy ein Rhaglen Ysbytai’r Dyfodol (FHP) 
flaenllaw ar ddatblygu modelau gofal arloesol i helpu i ateb anghenion cleifion yn defnyddio 

                                                
5
  Scott, I; Vaughan, L; Bell, D. Effectiveness of acute medical units in hospitals: a systematic review. International 

Journal for Quality in Health Care, 2009; Cyfrol 21, Rhif 6: tud. 397 –407.  
6
 Coleg Brenhinol y Meddygon. Acute Care Toolkit 10. Ambulatory Emergency Care. Hydref 2014 

7
 Coleg Brenhinol y Meddygon. Acute medical care: The right person, in the right setting – first time. Report of the 

Acute Medical Task Force. Llundain: RCP, 2007: p xxi. Wedi’i gymeradwyo gan y Coleg Meddygaeth Frys, 2012. 
8
 Blunt I. Focus on preventable admissions: Trends in emergency admissions for ambulatory care sensitive 

conditions, 2001 to 2013. Llundain: Y Sefydliad Iechyd ac Ymddiriedolaeth Nuffield, 2013. 

Tudalen y pecyn 62



 

 5 Ymchwiliad i barodrwydd am y gaeaf 2016/17 © Coleg Brenhinol y Meddygon 2016 

adnoddau presennol9. Mae un safle Ysbyty’r Dyfodol yng ngogledd Cymru ac wedi bod yn treialu 
sesiynau ymgynghorol tele-iechyd cleifion dros gyswllt fideo rhwng timau gofal iechyd 
cymunedol ac arbenigwyr ysbyty.10 Fodd bynnag, mae dau safle Ysbyty’r Dyfodol RCP yn Lloegr 
yn gweithio’n benodol i sicrhau bod llai o gleifion yn cael eu derbyn i’r ysbyty a’u bod yn derbyn 
gofal yn y gymuned, sef Mid Yorkshire NHS Hospital Trust ac East Lancashire Hospitals Trust. 

 
15. Mae Mid Yorkshire NHS Hospitals Trust wedi sefydlu Tîm Gofal Asesiad Chwim o’r Henoed 

(REACT) yn yr uned dderbyn aciwt yn Ysbyty Pinderfields yn Wakefield. Tîm amlddisgyblaethol 
yw REACT sy’n cynnwys ymgynghorwyr geriatrig, nyrsys a therapyddion arbenigol sy’n gweithio 
gyda’i gilydd i asesu cleifion 80+ oed, neu gleifion 65+ oed sy’n byw mewn cartrefi gofal, o fewn 
24 awr iddynt gyrraedd yr ysbyty. Mae’r tîm yn cwrdd yn ddyddiol i gydlynu’r gofal a’r 
triniaethau i gleifion fel y medrant adael yr ysbyty mor fuan â phosib ac fel nad oes raid eu 
derbyn yn ddiangen i’r ysbyty. Mae natur amlddisgyblaethol y tîm yn golygu y medrant gynnig 
gofal person-ganolog drwy ddarparu’r gwasanaethau iechyd a therapiwtig sydd ei angen ar bobl. 

 
16. Ers sefydlu’r tîm REACT yn 2014, mae Ysbyty Pinderfields wedi gweld gwelliant mawr yn nifer y 

cleifion sy’n derbyn gofal yn y gymuned yn hytrach na chael eu derbyn i’r ysbyty. Wrth gymharu 
data rhwng 2014 a 2015, mae cynnydd o 24% wedi bod yn nifer y bobl eiddil sy’n cael eu 
trosglwyddo i ofal yn y gymuned yn hytrach na chael eu symud i ward mewn ysbyty. Dros yr un 
cyfnod rhwng 2014 a 2015, roedd gostyngiad o 14% hefyd yng nghyfanswm y cleifion 80+ oed 
oedd yn cael eu derbyn i wardiau ysbyty. Mae’r asesiad sydyn hwn gan dîm amlddisgyblaethol 
wrth ddrws ffrynt yr ysbyty’n sicrhau bod cleifion yn derbyn y gofal mwyaf addas i’w hangen ac 
yn ysgafnu peth o’r pwysau sydd ar staff yng ngweddill yr ysbyty. 

 
17. Mae’r tîm REACT yn Ysbyty Pinderfields hefyd wedi bod yn gweithio’n agos â darparwyr trydydd 

sector i wella’r broses o drosglwyddo gofal o’r ysbyty i’r gymuned. Mae Age UK yn dod i’r uned 
asesu aciwt yn yr ysbyty’n gyson i drosglwyddo gofal cleifion yn ddiogel i’r gymuned11; maen 
nhw’n cynnig gwasanaeth cludo a siopa negesau fel nad yw pobl hŷn agored i niwed yn cael eu 
rhyddhau heb gymorth digonol. Drwy weithio’n gydweithredol gyda gweithwyr iechyd a gofal 
cymdeithasol y tu allan i’r ysbyty, mae pobl hŷn eiddil yn gallu derbyn gofal wedi’i 
bersonoleiddio fel y medrant aros yn annibynnol a pheidio gorfod cael eu haildderbyn. 

 
18. Mae safle datblygu FHP arall yn East Lancashire Hospitals Trust yn ceisio adnabod cleifion hŷn 

eiddil sydd ar gael i’w rhyddhau’r un diwrnod ar ôl iddynt gyrraedd yr ysbyty. Mae’r nyrs yn yr 
uned asesu meddygol (MAU) yn monitro lefel dderbyn aciwt y cleifion hŷn eiddil er mwyn 
adnabod y rhai sy’n addas i’w rhyddhau’n gyflym, yn trefnu iddynt dderbyn asesiad geriatrig 
cynhwysfawr ac yn cysylltu â gweithwyr gofal eilaidd a gofal cymdeithasol i gynllunio ar gyfer eu 
rhyddhau’n ddiogel yr un diwrnod. 

 
19. Mae data rhagarweiniol gan East Lancashire Hospitals Trust yn awgrymu y llwyddwyd i osgoi 

59% rhag cael eu derbyn i’r ysbyty’n defnyddio’r model gofal hwn ers i’r prosiect ddechrau yn 
201412. Os gellir osgoi derbyn cleifion i’r ysbyty drwy gyflymu siwrne’r claf o’r MAU trwodd at 
ofal cymdeithasol, gellir helpu pobl hŷn eiddil i adael yr ysbyty’n gynt a byw’n annibynnol yn y 
gymuned.  

 

                                                
9
 RCP Rhaglen Ysbytai’r Dyfodol  

10
 RCP Future Hospital development site: Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board    

11
Age UK. Frailty in secondary care.   

12
 Temple, M; Dytham, L; Bristow, H. Action learning at the Future Hospital development sites. Future Hospital 

Journal 2016 Vol 3, No 1: 13–5 

Tudalen y pecyn 63

https://www.rcplondon.ac.uk/projects/future-hospital-programme
https://www.rcplondon.ac.uk/projects/outputs/future-hospital-development-site-betsi-cadwaladr-university-health-board
http://www.ageuk.org.uk/brandpartnerglobal/wakefielddistrictvpp/documents/frailty%20conference/frailty%20in%20secondary%20care.pdf


 

 6 Ymchwiliad i barodrwydd am y gaeaf 2016/17 © Coleg Brenhinol y Meddygon 2016 

20. Yn y ddwy astudiaeth achos hon, mae gweithio mewn partneriaeth rhwng yr ysbytai a’r 
gwasanaethau cymunedol wedi lleihau’r oedi gyda rhyddhau. Mae gofal eilaidd a gofal 
cymdeithasol integredig i bobl hŷn yn gallu arwain at lai o ddefnydd o welyau ac yn ôl Cronfa’r 
Brenin mae ysbytai sy’n gweithio mewn ffordd integredig hefyd yn tueddu i fod â chyfraddau 
derbyn is sy’n rhoi profiad gwell i’r claf.13 
 

21. Mae’r problemau sy’n wynebu adrannau brys, yn enwedig yn ystod y gaeaf, yn gymhleth ac ni 
ellir eu datrys gydag un ateb. Bydd lleihau nifer yr achosion oedi gyda throsglwyddo gofal yn 
gwneud rhywfaint i ysgafnu’r pwysau ar adrannau brys. Mae effaith y diffyg cyllid ar gyfer y 
system gofal cymdeithasol yn ychwanegu at y pwysau mewn ysbytai, gyda chleifion yn aros yn 
hirach nag sydd angen yn yr ysbyty oherwydd diffyg gwasanaethau yn y gymuned. Ar ben hyn 
mae taer angen cynyddol i ganfod ateb cenedlaethol i’r problemau o recriwtio a chadw 
meddygon. Heb ddigon o feddygon ar y ddaear, bydd gofal cleifion yn dioddef. 

 
22. Fel y mae timau’r prosiect FHP yn ei ddangos, mae gweithio’n effeithiol yn amlddisgyblaethol ac 

integreiddio gwasanaethau gofal iechyd yn arwain at ganlyniadau a phrofiadau gwell i gleifion ac 
yn ysgafnu’r pwysau dros y gaeaf. Dyna pam y mae’r RCP yn credu bod angen symud i ffwrdd o 
fodel gofal lle buddsoddwn naill ai mewn gofal sylfaenol neu eilaidd, a thuag at weithio’n 
integredig fel tîm lle mae arbenigwyr ysbyty’n cynnal mwy o’u clinigau yn y gymuned a 
Meddygon Teulu’n treulio rhan o’u hamser yn gweithio gyda chydweithwyr wrth ddrws ffrynt yr 
ysbyty. 

 
Mae angen model gofal iechyd newydd ac integredig  

 
23. Byddem yn croesawu cael sgwrs aeddfed am ddyfodol dylunio gwasanaethau yng Nghymru, a’r 

weledigaeth sydd ei hangen ar lefel genedlaethol i ddatblygu ffordd newydd o weithio. Mae’n 
bwysig nad yw’r buddsoddiad yn y gwasanaeth iechyd yn y dyfodol yn ceisio cynnal hen system 
sydd wedi torri. Rhaid i Lywodraeth Cymru hyrwyddo modelau integreiddio arloesol a chyflwyno 
cyllidebau ar y cyd sy’n arwain at ganlyniadau ar y cyd ar draws y sector iechyd a gofal lleol. Ni 
fydd gwario ar y system bresennol yn newid unrhyw beth yn y tymor hir; rhaid i fyrddau iechyd 
fuddsoddi mewn atal a thrin cyflyrau cronig a gadael i glinigwyr arloesi. 

 
24. Ni ddylid anghofio’r bobl hynny sy’n byw mewn ardaloedd gwledig ac anghysbell chwaith; yr 

ardaloedd hyn sy’n cael eu taro galetaf gan yr argyfwng mewn gofal sylfaenol, a lle mae gan 
fodel gofal newydd ac uchelgeisiol fwyaf o botensial. I gyflawni hyn oll, rhaid newid ein ffordd o 
feddwl yn llwyr, rhaid cael ymgysylltu ac arweinyddiaeth glinigol gryfach a chael y timau gofal 
sylfaenol, eilaidd, cymunedol a chymdeithasol i feddwl yn fwy cydgysylltiedig. 

 
Am fwy o wybodaeth, cysylltwch os gwelwch yn dda gyda Lowri Jackson, uwch ymgynghorydd polisi a 
materion cyhoeddus RCP yng Nghymru, yn Lowri.Jackson@rcplondon.ac.uk.  
 
Gyda phob dymuniad da,  
 

   
 

                                                
13

 Imison C, Poteliakhoff E, Thompson J. Older people and emergency bed use. Exploring variation. London: The 
King’s Fund, 2012.  

Tudalen y pecyn 64

mailto:Lowri.Jackson@rcplondon.ac.uk


 

 7 Ymchwiliad i barodrwydd am y gaeaf 2016/17 © Coleg Brenhinol y Meddygon 2016 

Dr Alan Rees     Dr Andrew Goddard   
Is-lywydd Cymru’r RCP    Cofrestrydd y RCP  
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 65



 

 
  

Evaluation of health and care 
winter resilience 2016/17 
RCP Wales feedback  
 
 

About us  
 
The Royal College of Physicians (RCP) aims to improve patient care and reduce illness, in the UK 
and across the globe. We are patient centred and clinically led. Our 33,000 members worldwide, 
including 1,200 in Wales, work in hospitals and the community across 30 different medical 
specialties, diagnosing and treating millions of patients with a huge range of medical conditions. 
 

Amdanom ni 
 
Mae Coleg Brenhinol y Meddygon yn amcanu at wella gofal cleifion a lleihau salwch, yn y DU ac yn 
fyd-eang. Rydym yn sefydliad sy'n canolbwyntio ar y claf ac sy'n cael ei arwain yn glinigol. Mae ein 
33,000 o aelodau o gwmpas y byd, gan gynnwys 1,200 yng Nghymru, yn gweithio mewn ysbytai a 
chymunedau mewn 30 o wahanol feysydd meddygol arbenigol, gan ddiagnosio a thrin miliynau o 
gleifion sydd ag amrywiaeth enfawr o gyflyrau meddygol. 
 
For more information, please contact:  
 
Lowri Jackson 
RCP senior policy and public affairs adviser for Wales 
Lowri.Jackson@rcplondon.ac.uk  
075 5787 5119 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 66

mailto:Lowri.Jackson@rcplondon.ac.uk


 

 2 Evaluation of health and care winter resilience 2016/17 © Royal College of Physicians 2017 

 Royal College of Physicians (Wales) 
Baltic House, Mount Stuart Square 

Cardiff CF10 5FH 
+44 (0)75 5787 5119 

 www.rcplondon.ac.uk/wales 
National Programme for Unscheduled Care Board  
Welsh Government 
Cathays Park  
Cardiff CF10 3NQ 

 
From the RCP vice president for Wales  

O’r is-lywydd yr RCP dros Gymru 
Dr Gareth Llewelyn FRCP 

Gareth.Llewelyn@rcplondon.ac.uk 
Jasmine.Hagger@wales.gsi.gov.uk  
 From the RCP registrar 

O’r cofrestrydd yr RCP 
Dr Andrew Goddard FRCP 

Andrew.Goddard@rcplondon.ac.uk 

 
20 April 2017 

  

Evaluation of health and care winter resilience 2016/17 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to respond to your consultation on the evaluation of health and care 
winter resilience 2016/17. The Royal College of Physicians (RCP) has worked with consultants, trainee 
doctors and members of our patient carer network in Wales to produce this feedback, and we would be 
happy to organise further written or oral evidence if that would be helpful.  
 

Key recommendations 
 
What should be considered the top three priorities for next winter? 
 

1. Clinically-led, whole system forward planning 
Clinically-led, appropriately funded winter care planning should be started as early as possible 
every year. This should take a whole system approach to planning surge capacity, bringing in 
colleagues from across medicine, surgery, social care and specialist services: winter planning 
must be the responsibility of everyone working in the NHS and social care. Innovative, patient-
centred solutions should be encouraged; job planning should recognise that acute clinical input 
should concentrate on delivering scheduled services and research in the spring and summer, 
with a renewed focus on acute unscheduled care in the winter months. There are also several 
targeted system interventions that would help: for example, addressing RTT deadlines earlier in 
the year and enforcing an all-Wales patient repatriation policy. 
 

2. Increased resources and staff capacity  
The NHS workforce is now at breaking point and the recruitment crisis in medicine is getting 
worse – last year, we were unable to fill 40% of consultant physician vacancies in Wales and 
there are major trainee rota gaps in every hospital in Wales. The NHS must focus on providing 
enough medical beds, supported by a safe and consistent level of staffing across medicine, 
nursing, the therapies, and allied and support services, including phlebotomy. The Welsh 
Government and NHS Wales must develop an enforced all-Wales locum strategy which includes 
maximum fees for doctors.  
 

3. Social services and integrated care  
Social care must be an integral and forward thinking partner in winter care planning. Improved 
collaborative team working across health and social care should break down boundaries, with 

Tudalen y pecyn 67



 

 3 Evaluation of health and care winter resilience 2016/17 © Royal College of Physicians 2017 

social services proactively encouraged to speed up the transfer of care out of hospital. This will 
require extra resource for social care teams across Wales, especially for those based in hospitals 
and working on the front line of the winter care crisis.   

 

Our response  
 
What is your experience of how resilient the whole system has been when providing care during the 
winter months? 
 
The changing patient demographic  
Our members told us that while there is indeed a peak in the number of medical emergencies over the 
winter period, they do not see a huge spike in numbers. However, the patient illnesses at this time of 
year are often more serious, particularly in respiratory medicine. Our members told us that they also 
saw an increase in emergency surgery due to the aging population this year. Figures from one major 
teaching hospital in south Wales show that there has been a steady increase in the number of patients 
over 65 admitted to hospital over recent years. An average of 10 more older patients are admitted every 
week in winter compared with summer – and these patients tend to stay in hospital longer. 
 
Missed deadlines and poor project management 
While several of our fellows and members in Wales reported an improvement in whole system working 
this winter, we also found that some key projects, funded by the Intermediate Care Fund, were not in 
place in time for the winter months, due to long lead times for appointing hospital-based social workers. 
This could have made a huge difference to patient care and delayed transfers. 
 

‘The whole system was severely challenged. Due almost entirely to the lack of outflow, 
unscheduled care was under huge pressure and scheduled surgery was severely curtailed.’  

Consultant physician in diabetes and general medicine, NHS Wales 
 
Finance and staffing  
Our members told us that they did not receive enough financial resource to cope with the demands of 
winter this year, and those areas which were not funded coped worst – for example, bringing in extra 
senior decision-makers for medical outliers in surgical wards. Capacity was a significant issue and the 
numbers of outliers in surgical wards was high – often doubling the numbers of patients a medical team 
needed to care for. Length of stay for medical patients on surgical wards is far longer than for those on 
medical wards particularly for rehabilitation or complex care planning needs. 
 

‘Throughout the winter and most of the time we are under-resourced. The system is not 
resilient. However, there were considerable efforts to draw up contingency plans for the 
Christmas period and indeed other bank holiday periods. There are some very hardworking 
people (managerial and clinical) trying to make the system work for patients and staff, but 
the impact they can make is limited if the overall strategy is flawed.’ 

Consultant physician in geriatric and general medicine, NHS Wales 
 
Staffing was also highlighted as a major problem, especially in nursing, which had an impact on the 
effectiveness of many initiatives. One member observed that even where extra funds were available, 
the health board was frequently unable to recruit both extra nursing and medical staff. This has a knock 
on effect on staff wellbeing and sickness rates at a time of year when flu, stomach bugs and other 
illnesses are far more common. We were told that in one hospital, the decision was taken to open extra 
beds without adequate staffing, a move which was reported as a patient safety risk via the safe haven 
system, and later closed down after a review. 

Tudalen y pecyn 68



 

 4 Evaluation of health and care winter resilience 2016/17 © Royal College of Physicians 2017 

 
It is also worth remembering that reduced staffing capacity has a major negative effect on the ability of 
senior doctors to teach and train the next generation of doctors. This in turn affects recruitment into 
trainee posts and junior doctor positions, and exacerbates the wider workforce crisis.  
 

‘The quality of those we could recruit to winter pressure posts was extremely variable. The 
acuity and volume of patient seen in winter months is always much more intense, and 
requires huge efforts by the nursing and medical teams.’ 

Consultant physician in endocrinology and general medicine, NHS Wales 
 
One member suggested that an all-Wales policy on locum fees should be developed, arguing that the 
cost of employing locum nurses and doctors is exorbitant, and has a detrimental effect on the money 
available to the wider NHS.  
 
Lack of wider corporate ownership of the winter pressures challenge 
One member felt that there was a lack of wider corporate buy-in to winter resilience. He noted that 
surgical and specialist services are not currently included in winter planning processes, despite 
scheduled workload decreasing (because beds are taken up by medical inpatients and elective care is 
then cancelled due to a lack of beds). He argued that health boards should plan more strategically to 
redistribute nurses and doctors to support unscheduled care and increased winter admissions.  
 
Competing service priorities  
Fellows and members also told us that they would welcome a refreshed look at some of the service 
delivery deadlines. For example, hospitals are expected to achieve referral to treatment times (RTT) and 
GPs are asked to hit their Quality Outcomes Framework (QOF) targets at exactly the time when the NHS 
is struggling with winter pressures. This severely affects system resilience, and pulls health professionals 
in several directions at once.  We recognise that the cabinet secretary has temporarily suspended most 
QOF requirements for practices in order to free up capacity to deal with winter pressures, but this 
deadline should be changed in the longer term.  
 

‘It is difficult for the system to focus on the front door as well as discharging patients when 
other priorities are around at the same time.’ 

Consultant physician in gastroenterology and general medicine, NHS Wales 
 
To what extent were you engaged in the planning process for winter 2016/17? 
 
There was an extremely mixed response to this question, suggesting that there is no overall strategic 
approach across health boards to involving clinicians in the planning process. Some members, especially 
those in management positions, told us that they had been heavily involved in the planning process.  
 

‘We have benefited greatly from clinical management-led winter planning. Preparation 
began in mid-summer, and was informed by experience in the previous year … many 
clinicians fed in to the process.’ 

Consultant physician in endocrinology and general medicine, NHS Wales 
 
Others were much less positive:  
 

‘There was no meaningful clinical input requested regarding plans and little has happened 
regarding concerns about bed and staffing.’ 

Consultant physician in geriatric and general medicine, NHS Wales 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 69



 

 5 Evaluation of health and care winter resilience 2016/17 © Royal College of Physicians 2017 

Have local initiatives introduced as part of the winter plans been visible to you? What is your view/ 
experience of how successful they have been in improving service delivery to patients? 
 
There was a general feeling among members that while local initiatives had been put in place in most 
areas, they were often either too late to make a difference, or could not cope with the pressures placed 
on them. These initiatives included an increased social work presence in hospital, a community response 
team, a dedicated pathway for minor injuries, and more nursing home places in the community.  
 
What is your view on whether lessons have been learned from previous winters when considering 
delivery over winter 2016/17? 
 
Members felt that while in many cases lessons have been learned, not all of these have been responded 
to in a timely manner. One member highlighted particular issues with significant nursing shortages 
which have been exacerbated by GP cluster recruitment from secondary care into primary care. Without 
sufficient numbers of nurses, hospitals are unable to open extra surge beds during particularly busy time 
periods. 
 
Do you feel that local organisations are taking a whole system view when developing service 
enhancements for winter? 
 
There was firm support for increased cooperation between social care and the NHS. While one member 
noted that their local authority had greatly improved their response this winter, supported by money 
from the Intermediate Care Fund, the most important interventions simply did not happen in time to 
make a concerted difference to outcomes.  
 
To what extent did the additional planned actions support delivery of a standard of care you would 
expect to provide to patients? 
 

‘The problem was not the standard of care, it was inadequate capacity.’ 
Consultant physician in diabetes and general medicine, NHS Wales 

 
Again, members reiterated the importance of joining up demand with service delivery deadlines. 
Meeting referral to treatment (RTT) targets before the winter begins would free up clinicians to treat 
patients at the front door over the busiest months. However, this means releasing RTT money before 
the winter begins.  
 
What are your views on whether there was sufficient capacity available to support delivery of timely 
and quality care to patients over the Christmas period?  
 
There was general agreement that there was not sufficient capacity available to support the delivery of 
timely and quality care to patients over the Christmas period.  
 

‘[It] fell short of ensuring a high standard of care. While efforts were made by the clinical 
staff to ensure good care, it fell short because of difficult circumstances. Patient experience 
(and that of their significant others) was significantly affected negatively (long waits in A&E 
and staying there for long periods before moving to a ward). I do not feel that there are 
enough beds for medical patients and yet [my health board] is still pursuing a policy of bed 
reduction (on the back of significant reductions … in the community and acute sectors). 
However, the adequate staffing of beds is a difficult problem as well.’ 

Consultant in geriatric and general medicine, NHS Wales 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 70



 

 6 Evaluation of health and care winter resilience 2016/17 © Royal College of Physicians 2017 

To what extent do you think there was sufficient preparation for the post-Christmas period? 
 
It is the post-Christmas period which needs the most coordinated and effective social services response. 
There was some recognition that this was better this year than in previous years, and that health boards 
prepared in some detail, but in the end, it was felt they didn’t have the resources to offer an effective 
service. One member also observed that some patients are disadvantaged if they are admitted into a 
hospital outside of their local authority area as it can often more difficult to organise social care or 
rehabilitation support for these patients when they are medically fit to be transferred out of acute care.  
 
Have you observed evidence of integrated working between health and social care staff either in 
hospital or in the community? 
 
There was a mixed response to this question. Some members told us that while integrated working had 
improved on previous years, it was still not as effective as it should be, and often broke down over local 
authority and health board boundaries. Others told that they were actually unable to see any evidence 
of systematic integrated working between social care staff and hospital staff. All agreed that there was a 
major resource and capacity problem in social care.  
 

‘We have excellent engagement with our social care colleagues, which varies depending on 
the care organisation, but what can be achieved with the limited resources available is often 
frustrating. The process of moving people out of hospital once they are admitted is difficult 
– it can take two weeks to achieve social work allocation, another week to move cases 
forward, and another week to obtain funding or obtain a place in a residential or nursing 
home. A month can pass quite easily for a patient with complex discharge needs.’ 

Consultant physician in endocrinology and general medicine, NHS Wales 
 
One member suggested that NHS Wales develop a more robust repatriation policy, especially for those 
hospitals providing super-specialised services. Patients are currently transferred to specialist centres 
from all parts of Wales, and the current repatriation policy does not work for patients or organisations – 
patient flow is currently severely affected by delays in getting patients home.  
 
For more information   
 
Please note that more information about our policy and research work in Wales can be found on our 
website. If you have any questions, please contact Lowri Jackson, RCP senior policy and public affairs 
adviser for Wales, at Lowri.Jackson@rcplondon.ac.uk.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 71

https://www.rcplondon.ac.uk/projects/policy-and-public-affairs-wales
https://www.rcplondon.ac.uk/projects/policy-and-public-affairs-wales
mailto:Lowri.Jackson@rcplondon.ac.uk


Y Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon 
Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 
HSCS(5)-18-17 Papur 8 / Paper 8 

Tudalen y pecyn 72

Eitem 8.3



Tudalen y pecyn 73



Tudalen y pecyn 74



Tudalen y pecyn 75



 

 

Vaughan Gething AC 

Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Iechyd, Llesiant a 

Chwaraeon 

 

7 Mehefin 2017 

Annwyl Ysgrifennydd Cabinet,  

Ymchwiliad i barodrwydd ar gyfer y gaeaf 

Diolch i chi am eich llythyr dyddiedig 25 Ionawr 2017, mewn ymateb i adroddiad 

ac argymhellion y Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon o ran 

parodrwydd ar gyfer y gaeaf. Yn eich ymateb gwnaethoch gytuno i ddarparu 

gwybodaeth ddilynol mewn perthynas â nifer o argymhellion ac rwy'n ysgrifennu i 

gael y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am y rhain.  

Yn eich ymateb i'n hargymhelliad y dylid rhoi trefniadau ar waith i werthuso 

effeithiolrwydd pob ymgyrch Llywodraeth Cymru sy'n ymwneud ag iechyd yn ystod 

y gaeaf ac y dylid cyhoeddi'r hyn a ddysgwyd yn gyflym (argymhelliad 3), 

gwnaethoch gadarnhau bod trefniadau ar waith i werthuso effeithiolrwydd yr 

ymgyrch Dewis Doeth yn ystod y gaeaf diwethaf. Gwnaethoch roi gwybod hefyd y 

byddai ymchwil gymdeithasol yn cael ei wneud drwy ddefnyddio Omnibws 

Beaufort ac y byddai'r gwerthusiad hwn ar gael yn y Gwanwyn 2017. Byddwn yn 

ddiolchgar pe gallech roi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i'r Pwyllgor am y canfyddiadau 

a gafwyd yn y ddau ddarn o waith, a hefyd y manylion ynglŷn â'r modd y bwrir 

ymlaen i ymgorffori'r hyn a ddysgwyd o'r gwerthusiad hwn yn y gwaith cynllunio a 

wneir drwy gydol y flwyddyn yn y dyfodol, gan gynnwys yr ymgyrch ar gyfer y 

gaeaf hwn. 

Gwnaethoch gytuno hefyd i roi manylion am gynnydd yn erbyn targedau ar gyfer y 

buddsoddiad ychwanegol o £50 miliwn gan Lywodraeth Cymru i ymdopi â’r 

pwysau yn ystod y gaeaf. 

Y Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon 
Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 
HSCS(5)-18-17 Papur 9 / Paper 9

Tudalen y pecyn 76

Eitem 8.4



 

2 | Tudalen 

 

 

Rydym hefyd yn tynnu eich sylw at y pryderon a fynegwyd yn ddiweddar gan 

Goleg Brenhinol y Meddygon a Choleg Brenhinol Meddygaeth Frys Cymru. Mae 

Coleg Brenhinol y Meddygon hefyd yn poeni nad yw byrddau iechyd wedi dysgu o 

brofiad y gorffennol mewn perthynas â'r parodrwydd ar gyfer gaeaf 2016-17. Mae 

Coleg Brenhinol Meddygaeth Frys Cymru hefyd wedi rhoi gwybodaeth am y 

pwysau yn ystod y gaeaf o ran Adrannau Achosion Brys yng Nghymru. Yn y 

wybodaeth maent yn dweud 'yn ystod gaeaf 2016-17 bu pwysau eithafol ar y 

gwasanaethau a arweiniodd at ddirywiad yn y safonau 4-awr, adrannau gorlawn a 

'bloc ymadael', gan effeithio ar ansawdd cyffredinol y gofal a gafwyd gan gleifion'. 

 

Byddai o gymorth pe gallech roi'r wybodaeth hon erbyn 5 mis Gorffennaf. Byddwn 

hefyd yn croesawu cael sicrwydd gennych fod y gwaith cynllunio ar gyfer y gaeaf 

hwn eisoes wedi dechrau mynd rhagddo. 

Yn gywir,  

 

Dr Dai Lloyd AC 

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon  

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 77



Y Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon 
Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 
HSCS(5)-18-17 Papur 10 / Paper 10 

Tudalen y pecyn 78

Eitem 8.5



Tudalen y pecyn 79



Tudalen y pecyn 80



Tudalen y pecyn 81


	Agenda
	2 Ymchwiliad i unigrwydd ac unigedd – sesiwn dystiolaeth 5 – Coleg Brenhinol y Seiciatryddion
	Papur 1 - tystiolaeth gan Goleg Brenhinol y Seiciatryddion (saesneg yn unig)
	Ms Manel Tippett


	3 Ymchwiliad i unigrwydd ac unigedd – sesiwn dystiolaeth 6 – Conffederasiwn GIG Cymru
	4 Ymchwiliad i unigrwydd ac unigedd – sesiwn dystiolaeth 7 – Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru a Chymdeithas y Cyfarwyddwyr Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol (ADSS)
	5 Ymchwiliad i unigrwydd ac unigedd – sesiwn dystiolaeth 8 – Y Groes Goch Brydeinig yng Nghymru
	6 Ymchwiliad i unigrwydd ac unigedd – sesiwn dystiolaeth 9 – Gwasanaethau Gwirfoddol Morgannwg (GVS)
	8.1 Ymchwiliad i barodrwydd ar gyfer y gaeaf 2016/17 – gohebiaeth gan y Coleg Brenhinol Meddygaeth Frys
	8.2 Ymchwiliad i barodrwydd ar gyfer y gaeaf 2016/17 – gohebiaeth gan Goleg Brenhinol y Meddygon
	8.3 Ymchwiliad i ofal sylfaenol – gwybodaeth ychwanegol gan Fwrdd Iechyd Lleol Aneurin Bevan am Gyllid Datblygu Clystyrau
	8.4 Ymchwiliad i barodrwydd ar gyfer y gaeaf 2016/17 – llythyr at Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Iechyd, Llesiant a Chwaraeon
	8.5 Ymchwiliad i ofal sylfaenol – gwybodaeth ychwanegol gan Fwrdd Iechyd Lleol Prifysgol Abertawe Bro Morgannwg am Gyllid Datblygu Clystyrau



